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CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

 

Title of Each 
Class Of 
Securities to 
be Registered  

Amount to 
be 

Registered   

Proposed 
Maximum 
Aggregate 
Offering 
Price per 

share   

Proposed 
Maximum 
Aggregate 
Offering 

Price   

Amount of 
Registration 

fee  
Common Stock, $0.001 par value per
share   4,519,964  $ 0.75  $ 3,389,973  $ 436.63 

 
 
(1) This Registration Statement covers the resale by our selling security holders of up to 4,519,964 shares of Common Stock previously issued to such

selling security holders.
 

(2) The offering price has been estimated solely for the purpose of computing the amount of the registration fee in accordance with Rule 457(o). Our
Common Stock is not traded on any national exchange and in accordance with Rule 457; the offering price was determined by the price of the shares that
were sold to some of our shareholders in a private placement memorandum. The price of $0.75 is a fixed price at which the selling security holders may sell
their shares until our Common Stock is quoted on the OTCBB at which time the shares may be sold at prevailing market prices or privately negotiated prices.
There can be no assurance that a market maker will agree to file the necessary documents with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, which operates
the OTC Bulletin Board, nor can there be any assurance that such an application for quotation will be approved.

 
THE REGISTRANT HEREBY AMENDS THIS REGISTRATION STATEMENT ON SUCH DATE OR DATES AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO DELAY ITS
EFFECTIVE DATE UNTIL THE REGISTRANT SHALL FILE A FURTHER AMENDMENT WHICH SPECIFICALLY STATES THAT THIS REGISTRATION
STATEMENT SHALL THEREAFTER BECOME EFFECTIVE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 8(a) OF THE SECURITIES ACT OR UNTIL THE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE ON SUCH DATE AS THE COMMISSION, ACTING PURSUANT TO SUCH SECTION 8(a),
MAY DETERMINE.

 
The information in this preliminary prospectus is not complete and may be changed. These securities may not be sold until the registration statement filed
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) is effective. This preliminary prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and it is not
soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

 
The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the registration statement filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission becomes effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and we are not soliciting offers to buy
these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.
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PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS SUBJECT TO COMPLETION ON [         ] [  ], 2014

 
INTERNATIONAL WESTERN PETROLEUM, INC.

 
4,519,964 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK

 
The selling security holders named in this prospectus are offering all of the shares of Common Stock offered through this prospectus.  The Common Stock to
be sold by the selling security holders as provided in the “Selling Security Holders” section is shares of our common stock, par value $0.001 per share (the
“Common Stock”), that have already been issued and are currently outstanding. We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of the Common Stock
covered by this prospectus.

 
Our Common Stock is presently not traded on any market or securities exchange. The selling security holders have not engaged any underwriter in
connection with the sale of their shares of Common Stock.  Common Stock being registered in this Registration Statement may be sold by selling security
holders at a fixed price of $0.75 per share until our Common Stock is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board (“OTCBB”) and thereafter at a prevailing market
prices or privately negotiated prices or in transactions that are not in the public market. There can be no assurance that a market maker will agree to file the
necessary documents with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”), which operates the OTCBB, nor can there be any assurance that such an
application for quotation will be approved. We have agreed to bear the expenses relating to the registration of the shares of the selling security holders.

 
We are an emerging growth company as that term is used in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”) and are subject to reduced
public company reporting requirements.

 
Investing in our Common Stock involves a high degree of risk. See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 8 to read about factors you should consider before
buying shares of our Common Stock.

 
NEITHER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION HAS APPROVED OR
DISAPPROVED OF THESE SECURITIES OR DETERMINED IF THIS PROSPECTUS IS TRUTHFUL OR COMPLETE. ANY REPRESENTATION
TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.   

 
The Date of This Prospectus is: June 3, 2014
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Please read this prospectus carefully. It describes our business, our financial condition and results of operations. We have prepared this prospectus so that you
will have the information necessary to make an informed investment decision.
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You should rely only on information contained in this prospectus. We have not authorized any other person to provide you with different information. This
prospectus is not an offer to sell, nor is it seeking an offer to buy, these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted. The information in this
prospectus is complete and accurate as of the date on the front cover, but the information may have changed since that date.

 
PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

 
This summary highlights selected information contained elsewhere in this prospectus.  This summary does not contain all the information that you should
consider before investing in the Common Stock.  You should carefully read the entire prospectus, including “Risk Factors”, “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the Financial Statements, before making an investment decision. In this Prospectus, the
terms “International Western Petroleum,” “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to International Western Petroleum, Inc.

 
Overview

 
We were incorporated on February 19, 2014 under the laws of the state of Nevada. We are an exploration-stage oil and natural gas company that focuses on
the acquisition, development, and exploration of crude oil and natural gas properties in Texas.

 
The Company is currently managed by business and oil and gas exploration veterans who specialize in the oil and gas acquisition and exploration markets of
the Central/West Texas region: Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer, and Co-Founder, Ross Henry Ramsey, is a fourth generation oil
man and has been involved in several vertical and horizontal exploration works along with deep and shallow drilling with successful results; Chairman,
Secretary, and Co-Founder, Dr. Benjamin Tran, has vast experience in corporate finance, private equity and merchant banking; and Chief Geologist, Dr. Syed
Ahmad, has thirty years of diversified experience in the petroleum industry including extensive geological and operational experience with Exxon
Exploration (Texas), Saudi Geophysical/Aramco, and Petrolog De Venezuela. At the moment, the two co-founders of the Company control the majority of the
Company’s outstanding shares.

 
The Company has recently prospected and secured several lucrative exploration projects in the prolific Bend Arch region which is approximately 120 miles
long and 40 miles wide running from Archer County, Texas in the north to Brown County, Texas in the south. This area has been one of the most active
drilling areas during the recent resurgence of United States drilling activities.

 
Unlike many major oil companies that often drill very deep wells with a high degree of risk, the Company is a specialist in shallow well exploration (3,000 to
6,000 feet) that is less expensive and has lower risk factors.

 
The Company’s management team believes that the Company has the capacity and capability to take potential oil and gas reservoirs and develop them from
the ground floor to completion. The Company’s management team believes that the Company also has the ability to acquire several high potential acreage
that possess proven reserves of hydrocarbons. From evaluating seismic data, to the final steps of drilling, testing, completing and proceeding to production,
our staff has expertise in geology, petroleum engineering, geophysics and mechanical engineering. The Company is currently developing several acquisition
candidates including existing hydrocarbon production and proven reserve hydrocarbon land leases capable of additional drilling located in the Bend
Arch/Fort Worth Basin.

 
The Company is aiming to develop a six (6) well drilling program in Coleman County of Texas. This program shall execute drilling to an estimated depth of
4,600 feet which will place the wells into the geological formation known as the Ellenberger Formation.
 
The known geology of this lease in the Bend Arch shows that there are a total of up to five (5) potential oil and gas producing zones between the surface and
the Ellenberger Formation. The primary geological zones to be explored in the initial 6 well drilling package will be the Palo Pinto, Gardner Sand, Gray
Sand, Barnett Shale and Ellenberger. Once the wells have entered the Ellenberger Formation a suite of electronic logs will be run and the information
gathered off of the logs combined with the information gathered during drilling will dictate which zone each well will be completed in. Surrounding acreage
would suggest that each well will be completed and produced from the Ellenberger Formation as our target, however each of the other named Formations
have the potential to provide very good commercial production.
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In order to promote fast growth, management envisions that the majority of capital we generate from operations of acquired production will be reinvested to
fund new exploration projects. Our core business strategy is to: (a) acquire petroleum exploration companies with moderate production growth and add
capital to instigate explosive growth; (b) acquire new high-potential hydrocarbon land leases and perform initial exploration on those leases to add value as
“proven reserve” properties and then sell them off at multiples of the cost basis; and (c) acquire existing oil and gas production with large reserves, to increase
the Company’s value.

 
We are currently an exploration stage company. Since inception, our operations are limited to forming the Company and raising capital resource. We have
not generated any revenues to date. We do not currently engage in any business activities that provide cash flow. At the date hereof, we have minimal cash at
hand. We require additional capital to implement our business and fund our operations. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis “on page 30.

 
Where You Can Find Us

 
The Company’s principal executive office and mailing address is 5525 N. MacArthur Boulevard, Suite 280, Irving, TX 75038. Our telephone number is 855-
809-6900.

 
Implications of Being an Emerging Growth Company

 
We qualify as an emerging growth company as that term is used in the JOBS Act. An emerging growth company may take advantage of specified reduced
reporting and other burdens that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. These provisions include:

 
• A requirement to have only two years of audited financial statements and only two years of related MD&A;
 
• Exemption from the auditor attestation requirement in the assessment of the emerging growth company’s internal control over financial

reporting under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002;
 
• Reduced disclosure about the emerging growth company’s executive compensation arrangements; and
 
• No non-binding advisory votes on executive compensation or golden parachute arrangements.
 

We have already taken advantage of these reduced reporting burdens in this prospectus, which are also available to us as a smaller reporting company as
defined under Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).

 
In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides that an emerging growth company can take advantage of the extended transition period provided in
Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) for complying with new or revised accounting standards. We have elected
to use the extended transition period provided above and therefore our financial statements may not be comparable to companies that comply with public
company effective dates.

 
We could remain an emerging growth company for up to five years, or until the earliest of (i) the last day of the first fiscal year in which our annual gross
revenues exceed $1 billion, (ii) the date that we become a “large accelerated filer” as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act, which would occur if the
market value of our Common Stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the last business day of our most recently completed second
fiscal quarter, or (iii) the date on which we have issued more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt during the preceding three year period.

 

6

Source: INTERNATIONAL WESTERN PETROLEUM, INC., S-1, June 03, 2014 Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠
The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.



 

For more details regarding this exemption, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Critical
Accounting Policies.”

 
The Offering

 
Common Stock offered by selling security holders  4,519,964 shares of Common Stock. This number represents 10.39% of our current outstanding

Common Stock. (1)
   
Common Stock outstanding before the offering  43,484,964
   
Common Stock outstanding after the offering  43,484,964

  
Terms of the Offering  The selling security holders will determine when and how they will sell the Common Stock offered

in this prospectus. The selling security holders will sell at a fixed price of $0.75 per share until our
Common Stock is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board, and thereafter at prevailing market prices or
privately negotiated prices or in transactions that are not in the public market.

   
Termination of the Offering  The offering will conclude upon the earliest of (i) such time as all of the Common Stock has been

sold pursuant to the Registration Statement or (ii) such time as all of the Common Stock becomes
eligible for resale without volume limitations pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act, or any
other rule of similar effect.

   
Trading Market  There is currently no trading market for our Common Stock. We intend to apply soon for quotation

on the OTC Bulletin Board. We will require the assistance of a market-maker to apply for quotation
and there is no guarantee that a market-maker will agree to assist us.

   
Use of proceeds  We are not selling any shares of the Common Stock covered by this prospectus. As such, we will not

receive any of the offering proceeds from the registration of the shares of Common Stock covered by
this prospectus.

   
Risk Factors  The Common Stock offered hereby involves a high degree of risk and should not be purchased by

investors who cannot afford the loss of their entire investment. See “Risk Factors” beginning on
page 8.

 
(1) Based on 43,484,964 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of June 3, 2014
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Summary of Financial Information
 

The following summary financial data should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis,” “Plan of Operation” and the Financial
Statements and Notes thereto, included elsewhere in this prospectus. The statement of operations and balance sheet data from February 19, 2014 (inception)
through February 28, 2014 are derived from our audited interim financial statements. The data set forth below should be read in conjunction with
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” our financial statements and the related notes included in this
prospectus.

 
Statement of Operations:

 

  

For the Period  
From February 19,

2014(Inception)  
To February 28,

2014  
Revenues  $ - 
Operating expenses   56,338 
Net Loss  $ (56,338)
Net Loss per common share - Basic and Diluted  $ (0.00)
Weighted Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding - Basic and Diluted   36,000,000 

 
Balance Sheet Data:

 

  

As of 
February 28, 

2014  
Total Assets  $ - 
Total Current Liabilities   13,070 
Total Stockholders' Deficit   (13,070)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit  $ - 

  
RISK FACTORS

 
The shares of our Common Stock being offered for resale by the selling security holders are highly speculative in nature, involve a high degree of risk and
should be purchased only by persons who can afford to lose their entire amount invested in the Common Stock. Accordingly, prospective investors should
carefully consider, along with other matters referred to herein, the following risk factors in evaluating our business before purchasing any Units. If any of
the following risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition or operating results could be materially adversely affected. In such case, you may lose
all or part of your investment.  You should carefully consider the risks described below and the other information in this process before investing in our
Common Stock.

 
Risks Related to Our Business

 
LIMITED OPERATING HISTORY

 
The Company was formed on February 19, 2014. Prior to that time, the Company had no operations upon which an evaluation of the Company and its
prospects could be based. Exploration stage companies, such as the Company, even those already having acquisition candidates, are subject to all of the risks
inherent in the establishment of any new business. Our financial viability is dependent upon raising funds and successfully executing our business plan. The
likelihood of our success must be considered in the light of the challenges, both expected and unexpected, frequently encountered in connection with
starting and expanding a new business. Accordingly, we are planning to align our primarily fixed expense levels with our expectation of future revenues. As a
result, we may be unable to adjust spending in a timely manner to compensate for unexpected shortfalls in any forthcoming revenue. Any such shortfalls will
have an immediate adverse impact on our operating results and financial condition which could cause investors to lose all or a substantial part of their
investment.
 
OUR INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM HAS EXPRESSED SUBSTANTIAL DOUBT AS TO OUR ABILITY TO
CONTINUE AS A GOING CONCERN.

 
The audited financial statements included in the Registration Statement have been prepared assuming that we will continue as a going concern and do not
include any adjustments that might result if we cease to continue as a going concern. We have incurred significant losses since our inception.
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Based on our financial history since inception, in their report on our financial statements from inception through February 28, 2014, our independent
registered public accounting firm has expressed substantial doubt as to our ability to continue as a going concern. We are an exploration stage company that
has not yet started generating revenue.

 
There can be no assurance that we will have adequate capital resources to fund planned operations or that any additional funds will be available to us when
needed or at all, or, if available, will be available on favorable terms or in amounts required by us. If we are unable to obtain adequate capital resources to
fund operations, we may be required to delay, scale back or eliminate some or all of our operations, which may have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and ability to operate as a going concern.

  
IF WE NEED ADDITIONAL CAPITAL TO FUND OUR FUTURE OPERATIONS, WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO OBTAIN SUFFICIENT CAPITAL
AND MAY BE FORCED TO LIMIT THE SCOPE OF OUR OPERATIONS.

 
If adequate additional financing is not available on reasonable terms, we may not be able to undertake sufficient sales and business development efforts,
which may result in a negative impact to our cash flow and we would have to modify our business plans accordingly. There is no assurance that additional
financing will be available to us.

 
In connection with our growth strategies, we may experience increased capital needs and accordingly, we may not have sufficient capital to fund our future
operations without additional capital investments. Our capital needs will depend on numerous factors, including (i) our profitability; (ii) the development of
similar services undertaken by our competition; (iii) the level of our investment in sales and marketing; and (iv) the amount of our capital expenditures,
including corporate acquisitions. We cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain capital in the future to meet our needs.

 
In recent years, the securities markets in the United States have experienced a high level of price and volume volatility, and the market price of securities of
many companies have experienced wide fluctuations that have not necessarily been related to the operations, performances, underlying asset values or
prospects of such companies. For these reasons, our Common Stock can also be expected to be subject to volatility resulting from purely market forces over
which we will have no control.

 
If we cannot obtain additional funding, we may be required to: (i) limit our expansion; (ii) limit our marketing efforts; and (iii) decrease or eliminate capital
expenditures. Such reductions could materially adversely affect our business and our ability to compete.

 
Even if we do find a source of additional capital, we may not be able to negotiate terms and conditions for receiving the additional capital that are favorable
to us. Any future capital investments could dilute or otherwise materially and adversely affect the holdings or rights of our existing shareholders. In addition,
new equity or convertible debt securities issued by us to obtain financing could have rights, preferences and privileges senior to the shares being offered for
resale by the selling security holders. We cannot give you any assurance that any additional financing will be available to us, or if available, will be on terms
favorable to us.

 
YOU WILL EXPERIENCE DILUTION OF YOUR OWNERSHIP INTEREST BECAUSE OF THE FUTURE ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL SHARES
OF OUR COMMON STOCK AND OUR PREFERRED STOCK.

 
If we raise additional capital subsequent to this offering through the issuance of equity or convertible debt securities, the percentage ownership of our
company held by existing shareholders will be reduced and those shareholders may experience significant dilution.  In addition, we may also have to issue
securities that may have rights, preferences and privileges senior to our Common Stock. In the event we seek to raise additional capital through the issuance
of debt or its equivalents, this will result in increased interest expense.  
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WE WILL BE DEPENDENT UPON KEY PERSONNEL FOR THE FORESEEABLE FUTURE.
 

Given our early stage of development, we are highly dependent on our executive officers, employees, and contractors. Although we believe that we will be
able to identify, engage and motivate qualified personnel, an inability to do so could adversely affect our ability to market, sell, and develop our products
and services. Any difficulty to attracting and retaining key people could have an adverse effect on our business.

 
SIGNIFICANT ADVERSE IMPACT TO OUR CAPITAL RESERVE OF ANY LIABLE UNINSURED CLAIM
 
We do not have any insurance to cover potential risks and liabilities, including, but not limited to, injuries or economic losses arising out of or relating to our
omission or errors in providing our services. Even if we decide to obtain insurance coverage in the future, it is possible that: (1) we may not be able to get
enough insurance to meet our needs; (2) we may have to pay very high premiums for the additional coverage; (3) we may not be able to acquire any insurance
for certain types of business risk; or (4) we may have gaps in coverage for certain risks. We may be exposed to potential uninsured claims for which we could
have to expend significant amounts of capital. Consequently, if we were found liable for a significant uninsured claim in the future, we may be forced to
expend a significant amount of our capital to resolve the uninsured claim.
 
UNCERTAINTY OF PROFITABILITY
 
Our business model requires significant investment in acquisitions and explorations, and, if and to the extent our business grows, we will need to hire new
employees. Specifically, our profitability will depend upon our success at accomplishing the following tasks:
 

• implementing and executing our business model;
• establishing name recognition and a reputation for value with domestic and worldwide investors and partners;
• implementing results-oriented explorations, domestic and worldwide distribution and sales strategies; and
• developing sound business relationships with key strategic partners, and hiring and retaining skilled employees.

 
Additionally, our revenues and operating results may vary significantly from quarter-to-quarter due to a number of factors, including:

 
• economic conditions generally, as well as those specific to the oil and gas industry;
• our ability to manage relationships with industry and distribution partners to sell our production;
• our ability to access capital as needed, on terms which are fair and reasonable to the Company;
• our ability to successfully to produce high quality oil, and get that product to buyers in the intended manner; and
• the ability of third-party vendors to manage their procurement and delivery operations.

 
MANAGEMENT OF GROWTH
 
Successful expansion of our business will depend on our ability to effectively attract and manage staff, strategic business relationships, and shareholders.
Specifically, we will need to hire skilled management and technical personnel as well as manage partnerships to navigate shifts in the general economic
environment as well as in our target geographic exploration locations. Expansion has the potential to place significant strains on financial, management, and
operational resources, yet failure to expand will inhibit our profitability goals.
 
WE ARE ENTERING A POTENTIALLY HIGHLY COMPETITIVE MARKET
 
We may face substantial competition in the oil and gas industry. To management’s knowledge, there are many exploration companies in the oil and gas
industry which will compete directly with us. There are many large, well-capitalized, private and public companies in this industry, which have the resources,
lease access, loyal buyers and expertise to drill and produce oil if they wish to do so. Many of our existing and potential competitors have substantially
greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we do. These competitors may be able to adopt more aggressive pricing policies. This type of
pricing pressure could force us to offer discounts, decreasing our profit margin.
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CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
 
The Company’s principal executive officers and Directors also control a majority of the outstanding shares of the Company’s stock, and will continue to do
so for the foreseeable future. As a result, no other persons can or will be able to effect any Company action except with the consent of these officers and
directors, and in certain matters (such as compensation, incentive stock ownership, and continues employment), there may be an inherent conflict of interest
unless such persons agree to abstain from voting on such matters, which they are not legally required to do. Our officers and directors may also serve as
officers and directors of other entities that are not affiliated with us. Such non-affiliates may be involved in similar business enterprises to ours.
 
WE MAY INCUR SIGNIFICANT COSTS TO BE A PUBLIC COMPANY TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH U.S. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AND ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS AND WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO ABSORB SUCH COSTS.

 
We may incur significant costs associated with our public company reporting requirements, costs associated with newly applicable corporate governance
requirements, including requirements under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and other rules implemented by the Securities and Exchange Commission. We
expect these costs to be approximately $25,000 per year. We expect all of these applicable rules and regulations to significantly increase our legal and
financial compliance costs and to make some activities more time consuming and costly. We also expect that these applicable rules and regulations may
make it more difficult and more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance and we may be required to accept reduced policy limits and
coverage or incur substantially higher costs to obtain the same or similar coverage. As a result, it may be more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified
individuals to serve on our board of directors or as executive officers. We are currently evaluating and monitoring developments with respect to these newly
applicable rules, and we cannot predict or estimate the amount of additional costs we may incur or the timing of such costs. In addition, we may not be able to
absorb these costs of being a public company which will negatively affect our business operations.

 
WE ARE AN “EMERGING GROWTH COMPANY,” AND ANY DECISION ON OUR PART TO COMPLY ONLY WITH CERTAIN REDUCED
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO “EMERGING GROWTH COMPANIES” COULD MAKE OUR COMMON STOCK LESS
ATTRACTIVE TO INVESTORS.

 
We are an “emerging growth company,” as defined in the JOBS Act, and, for as long as we continue to be an “emerging growth company,” we expect and
fully intend to take advantage of exemptions from various reporting requirements applicable to other public companies but not to “emerging growth
companies,” including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirements
of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and shareholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved.
We could be an “emerging growth company” for up to five years, or until the earliest of (i) the last day of the first fiscal year in which our annual gross
revenues exceed $1 billion, (ii) the date that we become a “large accelerated filer” as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act, which would occur if the
market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the last business day of our most recently completed second fiscal
quarter, or (iii) the date on which we have issued more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt during the preceding three year period.
 
In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides that an “emerging growth company” can take advantage of the extended transition period provided in
Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act for complying with new or revised accounting standards. In other words, an “emerging growth company” can delay
the adoption of certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies.  We have elected to opt in to the extended
transition period for complying with the revised accounting standards. We have elected to rely on these exemptions and reduced disclosure requirements
applicable to “emerging growth companies” and expect to continue to do so.
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WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO MEET THE ACCELERATED FILING AND INTERNAL CONTROL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS IMPOSED BY
THE SEC WHICH MAY RESULT IN A DECLINE IN THE PRICE OF OUR SHARES OF COMMON STOCK AND AN INABILITY TO OBTAIN
FUTURE FINANCING.

 
As directed by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as amended by SEC Release No. 33-8934 on June 26, 2008, the SEC adopted rules requiring each
public company to include a report of management on the company’s internal controls over financial reporting in its annual reports. In addition, the
independent registered public accounting firm auditing a company’s financial statements must also attest to and report on management’s assessment of the
effectiveness of the company’s internal controls over financial reporting as well as the operating effectiveness of the company’s internal controls. We will be
required to include a report of management on its internal control over financial reporting. The internal control report must include a statement

 
 • Of management’s responsibility for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over its financial reporting;

 
 • Of management’s assessment of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of year end; and

 
 • Of the framework used by management to evaluate the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting.

 
Furthermore, our independent registered public accounting firm will be required to file its attestation report separately on our internal control over financial
reporting on whether it believes that we have maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting.

 
While we expect to expend significant resources in developing the necessary documentation and testing procedures required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act, there is a risk that we may not be able to comply timely with all of the requirements imposed by this rule. In the event that we are unable to receive
a positive attestation from our independent registered public accounting firm with respect to our internal controls, investors and others may lose confidence
in the reliability of our financial statements and our stock price and ability to obtain equity or debt financing as needed could suffer.

 
In addition, in the event that our independent registered public accounting firm is unable to rely on our internal controls in connection with its audit of our
financial statements, and in the further event that it is unable to devise alternative procedures in order to satisfy itself as to the material accuracy of our
financial statements and related disclosures, it is possible that we would be unable to file our Annual Report on Form 10-K with the SEC, which could also
adversely affect the market price of our Common Stock and our ability to secure additional financing as needed.
 
THE JOBS ACT ALLOWS US TO DELAY THE ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT HAVE DIFFERENT
EFFECTIVE DATES FOR PUBLIC AND PRIVATE COMPANIES.

 
Since we have elected to use the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards under Section 102(b)(1) of the JOBS Act,
this election allows us to delay the adoption of new or revised accounting standards that have different effective dates for public and private companies until
those standards apply to private companies.  As a result of this election, our financial statements may not be comparable to companies that comply with
public company effective dates.
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OUR SHARES OF COMMON STOCK WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE EXCHANGE ACT AND AS A RESULT WE WILL HAVE
LIMITED REPORTING DUTIES WHICH COULD MAKE OUR COMMON STOCK LESS ATTRACTIVE TO INVESTORS.

 
Our shares of Common Stock are not registered under the Exchange Act. As a result, we will not be subject to the federal proxy rules and our directors,
executive officers and 10% beneficial holders will not be subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act. In additional our reporting obligations under Section
15(d) of the Exchange Act may be suspended automatically if we have fewer than 300 shareholders of record on the first day of our fiscal year. Our common
shares are not registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and we do not intend to register our shares of Common Stock under the
Exchange Act for the foreseeable future, provided that, we will register our shares of Common Stock under the Exchange Act if we have, after the last day of
our fiscal year, more than either (i) 2000 persons; or (ii) 500 shareholders of record who are not accredited investors, in accordance with Section 12(g) of the
Exchange Act. As a result, although, upon the effectiveness of the Registration Statement of which this prospectus forms a part, we will be required to file
annual, quarterly, and current reports pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act, as long as our shares of Common Stock are not registered under the
Exchange Act, we will not be subject to Section 14 of the Exchange Act, which, among other things, prohibits companies that have securities registered
under the Exchange Act from soliciting proxies or consents from shareholders without furnishing to shareholders and filing with the Securities and Exchange
Commission a proxy statement and form of proxy complying with the proxy rules. In addition, so long as our shares of Common Stock are not registered
under the Exchange Act, our directors and executive officers and beneficial holders of 10% or more of our outstanding shares of Common Stock will not be
subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act. Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires executive officers and directs, and persons who beneficially own more
than 10% of a registered class of equity securities to file with the SEC initial statements of beneficial ownership, reports of changes in ownership and annual
reports concerning their ownership of shares of Common Stock and other equity securities, on Forms 3, 4 and 5, respectively. Such information about our
directors, executive officers, and beneficial holders will only be available through this (and any subsequent) Registration Statement, and periodic reports we
file thereunder. Furthermore, so long as our shares of Common Stock are not registered under the Exchange Act, our obligation to file reports under Section
15(d) of the Exchange Act will be automatically suspended if, on the first day of any fiscal year (other than a fiscal year in which a registration statement
under the Securities Act has gone effective), we have fewer than 300 shareholders of record. This suspension is automatic and does not require any filing with
the SEC. In such an event, we may cease providing periodic reports and current or periodic information, including operational and financial information, may
not be available with respect to our results of operations.

 
BECAUSE OUR COMMON STOCK IS NOT REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED, OUR
REPORTING OBLIGATIONS UNDER SECTION 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED, MAY BE SUSPENDED
AUTOMATICALLY IF WE HAVE FEWER THAN 300 SHAREHOLDERS OF RECORD ON THE FIRST DAY OF OUR FISCAL YEAR.

 
Our Common Stock is not registered under the Exchange Act, and we do not intend to register our Common Stock under the Exchange Act for the foreseeable
future (provided that, we will register our Common Stock under the Exchange Act if we have, after the last day of our fiscal year, $10,000,000 in total assets
and either more than 2,000 shareholders of record or 500 shareholders of record who are not accredited investors (as such term is defined by the Securities and
Exchange Commission), in accordance with Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act).   As long as our Common Stock is not registered under the Exchange Act,
our obligation to file reports under Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act will be automatically suspended if, on the first day of any fiscal year (other than a fiscal
year in which a registration statement under the Securities Act has gone effective), we have fewer than 300 shareholders of record.  This suspension is
automatic and does not require any filing with the SEC.  In such an event, we may cease providing periodic reports and current or periodic information,
including operational and financial information, may not be available with respect to our results of operations.

 
OUR ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION PROVIDE FOR INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS AT OUR EXPENSE AND LIMIT
THEIR LIABILITY WHICH MAY RESULT IN A MAJOR COST TO US AND HURT THE INTERESTS OF OUR SHAREHOLDERS BECAUSE
CORPORATE RESOURCES MAY BE EXPENDED FOR THE BENEFIT OF OFFICERS AND/OR DIRECTORS.  

 
The Company’s Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws include provisions that eliminate the personal liability of the directors of the Company for
monetary damages to the fullest extent possible under the laws of the State of Nevada or other applicable law. These provisions eliminate the liability of
directors to the Company and its stockholders for monetary damages arising out of any violation of a director of his fiduciary duty of due care. Under Nevada
law, however, such provisions do not eliminate the personal liability of a director for (i) breach of the director’s duty of loyalty, (ii) acts or omissions not in
good faith or involving intentional misconduct or knowing violation of law, (iii) payment of dividends or repurchases of stock other than from lawfully
available funds, or (iv) any transaction from which the director derived an improper benefit. These provisions do not affect a director’s liabilities under the
federal securities laws or the recovery of damages by third parties.
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REPORTING REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE EXCHANGE ACT AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, INCLUDING
ESTABLISHING AND MAINTAINING ACCEPTABLE INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING, ARE COSTLY AND MAY
INCREASE SUBSTANTIALLY.

 
The rules and regulations of the SEC require a public company to prepare and file periodic reports under the Exchange Act, which will require that the
Company engage legal, accounting, auditing and other professional services. The engagement of such services is costly. Additionally, the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”) requires, among other things, that we design, implement and maintain adequate internal controls and procedures over
financial reporting. The costs of complying with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the limited technically qualified personnel we have may make it difficult for us
to design, implement and maintain adequate internal controls over financial reporting. In the event that we fail to maintain an effective system of internal
controls or discover material weaknesses in our internal controls, we may not be able to produce reliable financial reports or report fraud, which may harm our
overall financial condition and result in loss of investor confidence and a decline in our share price.

  
As a public company, we will be subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the Dodd-Frank Act of 2010 and other
applicable securities rules and regulations. Despite recent reforms made possible by the JOBS Act, compliance with these rules and regulations will
nonetheless increase our legal and financial compliance costs, make some activities more difficult, time-consuming or costly and increase demand on our
systems and resources, particularly after we are no longer an “emerging growth company.” The Exchange Act requires, among other things, that we file
annual, quarterly, and current reports with respect to our business and operating results.

  
We are working with our legal, accounting and financial advisors to identify those areas in which changes should be made to our financial and management
control systems to manage our growth and our obligations as a public company. These areas include corporate governance, corporate control, disclosure
controls and procedures and financial reporting and accounting systems. We have made, and will continue to make, changes in these and other areas.
However, we anticipate that the expenses that will be required in order to adequately prepare for being a public company could be material. We estimate that
the aggregate cost of increased legal services; accounting and audit functions; personnel, such as a chief financial officer familiar with the obligations of
public company reporting; consultants to design and implement internal controls; and financial printing alone will be a few hundred thousand dollars per
year and could be several hundred thousand dollars per year. In addition, if and when we retain independent directors and/or additional members of senior
management, we may incur additional expenses related to director compensation and/or premiums for directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, the costs of
which we cannot estimate at this time. We may also incur additional expenses associated with investor relations and similar functions, the cost of which we
also cannot estimate at this time. However, these additional expenses individually, or in the aggregate, may also be material.

 
In addition, being a public company could make it more difficult or more costly for us to obtain certain types of insurance, including directors’ and officers’
liability insurance, and we may be forced to accept reduced policy limits and coverage or incur substantially higher costs to obtain the same or similar
coverage. The impact of these events could also make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified persons to serve on our board of directors, our
board committees or as executive officers.

 
The increased costs associated with operating as a public company may decrease our net income or increase our net loss, and may cause us to reduce costs in
other areas of our business or increase the prices of our products or services to offset the effect of such increased costs. Additionally, if these requirements
divert our management’s attention from other business concerns, they could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.
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THE COMPANY MAY BE SUBJECT TO LITIGATION IN THE FUTURE WHICH COULD IMPACT THE FINANCIAL HEALTH OF THE
COMPANY.

 
Currently there are no legal proceedings pending or threatened against the Company. However, from time to time, we may become involved in various
lawsuits and legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. Litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties, and an adverse result in these or
other matters may arise from time to time that may harm our business.

 
Risks Related to the Exploration Business
 
OUR PRODUCTION REVENUES MAY BE ADVERSELY AFFECTED BY CHANGES IN OIL AND GAS PRICES AND IF WE ARE UNABLE TO
CONTINUE GETTING A GOOD HIT VS. MISS RATIO ON EXPLORATION.
 
The Company is an exploration stage company in the oil and gas industry. To generate revenues and profits, the Company must own majority interests of
new production. The only way for the Company to reach strong stable production capacity is to raise enough capital to help the Company gain a larger
control of new working interests in any future production wells. Any significant changes in oil prices or any inability on our part to anticipate or react to such
changes could result in reduced revenues and profits and erosion of our competitive and financial position. Our success also depends on our ability to acquire
good hydrocarbon production and bringing new oil wells to production with reasonable production capacity. In addition, changes from very shallow well to
semi shallow well exploration or geographical exploration locations could result in higher costs of production and higher risks.
 
PRODUCTION REVENUE MAY BE REDUCED DUE TO A VARIETY OF FACTORS.
 
Production revenue may be reduced due to a variety of factors, including the aging of re-entry wells, changes in hydrocarbon flows, depletion, natural
disasters, weather, negative publicity resulting from regulatory action or litigation against companies in our industry, or a downturn in economic conditions
or taxes specifically targeting the consumption of oil and gas. Any of these changes may reduce our projected production revenues. Our success is also
dependent on our technology innovations and applications, including maintaining production capacity, and the effectiveness of our advertising campaigns,
marketing programs and market positioning. Although we will devote significant resources to meeting our revenue goals, there can be no assurance as to our
ability either to explore new projects and launch successful new production, or to effectively execute explorations and new acquisitions. In addition, both the
launch and ongoing success of new production and acquisitions are inherently uncertain, especially as to their appeal to our investors.
 
ANY DAMAGE TO OUR REPUTATION COULD HAVE AN ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR BUSINESS, FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS.
 
Maintaining a good reputation globally is going to be critical to the Company here and abroad. If we fail to maintain high standards for our work ethic and
integrity, including with regard to our production results, our reputation could be jeopardized. Adverse publicity about these types of concerns, or the
incidence of “dry holes” in exploration or low production wells, whether or not valid, may cause production and delivery disruptions. If any of our
production wells becomes depleted for any reason, is mishandled or causes injury, we may be subject to legal liability. A widespread non-commercialized
production or a significant depletion could cause our production to be disrupted for a period of time, which could further reduce our revenue and damage our
corporate image. Failure to maintain high ethical, social and environmental standards for all of our operations and activities or adverse publicity regarding
our responses to health concerns, our environmental impact, including drilling and production materials, energy use and waste management, or other
sustainability issues, could jeopardize our reputation. In addition, water is a limited resource in many parts of the world. Our reputation could be damaged if
we do not act responsibly with respect to water use of our exploration purposes. Failure to comply with local laws and regulations, to maintain an effective
system of internal controls or to provide accurate and timely financial statement information could also hurt our reputation. Damage to our reputation or loss
of buyer confidence in our oil production for any of these reasons could result in decreased demand for our products and could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and results of operations, as well as require additional resources to rebuild our reputation.
 

15

Source: INTERNATIONAL WESTERN PETROLEUM, INC., S-1, June 03, 2014 Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠
The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.



 

OUR ABILITY TO RAISE FUNDS COULD BE ADVERSELY AFFECTED AS A RESULT OF UNSTABLE POLITICAL CONDITIONS, CIVIL
UNREST OR OTHER DEVELOPMENTS AND RISKS IN THE COUNTRIES WHERE WE PLAN TO DO BUSINESS.
 
Unstable political conditions, civil unrest or other developments and risks in the countries where we plan to do business could have an adverse impact on our
ability to raise funds. Factors that could adversely affect our business results in these countries include: import and export restrictions; foreign ownership
restrictions; nationalization of our assets; regulations on the repatriation of funds which from time to time result in significant cash balances in certain
countries; and currency hyperinflation or devaluation. In addition, disruption in these markets due to political instability or civil unrest could result in a
decline in consumer purchasing power, thereby reducing demand for our products. We believe that our business in developing and emerging markets presents
an important future growth opportunity for us. If we are unable to expand our businesses in emerging and developing markets for any of the reasons described
above, as a result of increased competition in these countries from multinationals or local competitors, or for any other reason, our growth rate could be
adversely affected.
 
CHANGES IN THE LEGAL AND REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT COULD LIMIT OUR BUSINESS ACTIVITIES, INCREASE OUR OPERATING
COSTS, REDUCE DEMAND FOR OUR PRODUCTION OR RESULT IN LITIGATION.
 
The conduct of our business, and the production, distribution, sale, advertising, labeling, safety, and transportation of our products, are subject to various
laws and regulations administered by federal, state and local governmental agencies in the United States, as well as to foreign laws and regulations
administered by governmental entities and agencies in markets in which we plan to operate. These laws and regulations may change, sometimes dramatically,
as a result of political, economic or social events. Such regulatory environment changes may include changes in: laws related to advertising and deceptive
marketing practices; accounting standards; taxation requirements, including taxes specifically targeting the consumption of our products; anti-trust laws; and
environmental laws, including laws relating to the regulation of oil and gas production. Changes in laws, regulations or governmental policy and related
interpretations may alter the environment in which we do business and, therefore, may impact our results or increase our costs or liabilities. Governmental
entities or agencies in jurisdictions where we plan to operate may also impose new quality or production requirements, or other restrictions. Regulatory
authorities under whose laws we operate may also have enforcement powers that can subject us to actions such as product recall, seizure of products or other
sanctions, which could have an adverse effect on our sales or damage our reputation.
 
DISRUPTION OF OUR PROPOSED SUPPLY CHAIN COULD HAVE AN ADVERSE IMPACT ON OUR BUSINESS, FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.
 
Our ability and the ability of our suppliers, business partners, including drillers, operators, and independent buyers, to make, move and sell our products is
critical to our success. Damage or disruption to our or their manufacturing or distribution capabilities due to adverse weather conditions, natural disaster, fire,
terrorism, the outbreak or escalation of armed hostilities, pandemics, strikes and other labor disputes or other reasons beyond our or their control, could
impair our ability to produce oil. Failure to take adequate steps to mitigate the likelihood or potential impact of such events, or to effectively manage such
events if they occur, could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations, as well as require additional resources to restore our
supply chain.
 
Risks Related to Our Common Stock

 
THERE IS NO ASSURANCE OF A PUBLIC MARKET OR THAT OUR COMMON STOCK WILL EVER TRADE ON A RECOGNIZED EXCHANGE.
THEREFORE, YOU MAY BE UNABLE TO LIQUIDATE YOUR INVESTMENT IN OUR STOCK.

 
There is no established public trading marketing for our Common Stock and there can be no assurance that one will ever develop. Market liquidity will
depend on the perception of our operating business and any steps that our management might take to bring us to the awareness of investors. There can be no
assurance given that there will be any awareness generated. Consequently, investors may not be able to liquidate their investment or liquidate it at a price
that reflects the value of the business. As a result, holders of our securities may not find purchasers for our securities should they to sell securities held by
them. Consequently, our securities should be purchased only by investors having no need for liquidity in their investment and who can hold our securities
for an indefinite period of time.
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WE MAY NEVER PAY ANY DIVIDENDS TO SHAREHOLDERS.
 

We currently intend to retain any future earnings for use in the operation and expansion of our business. Accordingly, we do not expect to pay any dividends
in the foreseeable future, but will review this policy as circumstances dictate.

 
THE OFFERING PRICE OF THE COMMON STOCK WAS DETERMINED BASED ON THE PRICE OF OUR PRIVATE OFFERING, AND
THEREFORE SHOULD NOT BE USED AS AN INDICATOR OF THE FUTURE MARKET PRICE OF THE SECURITIES. THEREFORE, THE
OFFERING PRICE BEARS NO RELATIONSHIP TO OUR ACTUAL VALUE, AND MAY MAKE OUR SHARES DIFFICULT TO SELL.

 
Since our shares are not listed or quoted on any exchange or quotation system, the offering price of $0.75 per share for the shares of common stock was
determined based on the price of our private offering. The facts considered in determining the offering price were our financial condition and prospects, our
limited operating history and the general condition of the securities market. The offering price bears no relationship to the book value, assets or earnings of
our company or any other recognized criteria of value. The offering price should not be regarded as an indicator of the future market price of the securities.

 
OUR COMMON STOCK IS CONSIDERED A PENNY STOCK, WHICH MAY BE SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS ON MARKETABILITY, SO YOU
MAY NOT BE ABLE TO SELL YOUR SHARES.

 
We may be subject now and in the future to the SEC’s “penny stock” rules if our shares of Common Stock sell below $5.00 per share. Penny stocks generally
are equity securities with a price of less than $5.00. The penny stock rules require broker-dealers to deliver a standardized risk disclosure document prepared
by the SEC which provides information about penny stocks and the nature and level of risks in the penny stock market. The broker-dealer must also provide
the customer with current bid and offer quotations for the penny stock, the compensation of the broker-dealer and its salesperson, and monthly account
statements showing the market value of each penny stock held in the customer’s account. The bid and offer quotations, and the broker-dealer and salesperson
compensation information must be given to the customer orally or in writing prior to completing the transaction and must be given to the customer in writing
before or with the customer’s confirmation.

 
In addition, the penny stock rules require that prior to a transaction, the broker dealer must make a special written determination that the penny stock is a
suitable investment for the purchaser and receive the purchaser’s written agreement to the transaction. The penny stock rules are burdensome and may reduce
purchases of any offerings and reduce the trading activity for shares of our Common Stock. As long as our shares of Common Stock are subject to the penny
stock rules, the holders of such shares of Common Stock may find it more difficult to sell their securities.

 
  

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
 

Certain information contained in this Registration Statement includes forward-looking statements. The statements herein which are not historical reflect our
current expectations and projections about the Company’s future results, performance, liquidity, financial condition, prospects and opportunities and are
based upon information currently available to the Company and its management and management’s interpretation of what is believed to be significant
factors affecting the business, including many assumptions regarding future events. Such forward-looking statements include statements regarding, among
other things, (i) our projected sales and profitability; (ii) our growth strategies; (iii) anticipated trends in our industry; (iv) our future financing plans; and (v)
our anticipated needs for working capital. Forward-looking statements, which involve assumptions and describe our future plans, strategies, and expectations,
are generally identifiable by use of the words “will,” “shall,” “may,” “should,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “believe,” “intend,” “plan,” or “project” or
the negative of these words or other variations on these words or comparable terminology. Actual results, performance, liquidity, financial condition,
prospects and opportunities could differ materially from those expressed in, or implied by, these forward-looking statements as a result of various risks,
uncertainties and other factors, including the ability to raise sufficient capital to continue the Company’s operations. Actual events or results may differ
materially from those discussed in forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including, without limitation, the risks outlined under “Risk
Factors” and matters described in this Registration Statement generally. In light of these risks and uncertainties, there can be no assurance that the forward-
looking statements contained in this Registration Statement will in fact occur.
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Prospective investors should not place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. Except as expressly required by the federal securities laws, there is
no undertaking to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, changed circumstances or
any other reason.

 
The specific discussions herein about the Company include financial projections and future estimates and expectations about the Company’s business. The
projections, estimates and expectations are presented in this Registration Statement only as a guide about future possibilities and do not represent actual
amounts or assured events. All the projections and estimates are based exclusively on the Company management’s own assessment of its business, the
industry in which it works and the economy at large and other operational factors, including capital resources and liquidity, financial condition, fulfillment
of contracts and opportunities. The actual results may differ significantly from the projections.

 
Prospective investors should not make an investment decision based solely on the Company’s projections, estimates or expectations. 
 
Use of Proceeds

 
We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of Common Stock by the selling security holders. All of the net proceeds from the sale of our Common Stock
will go to the selling security holders as described below in the sections entitled “Selling Security Holders” and “Plan of Distribution”.  We have agreed to
bear the expenses relating to the registration of the Common Stock for the selling security holders.

 
Determination of Offering Price

 
Since our Common Stock is not listed or quoted on any exchange or quotation system, the offering price of the shares of Common Stock was determined by
the price of the Common Stock that was sold to our security holders pursuant to an exemption under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 and Rule 506
of Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933.

 
The offering price of the shares of our Common Stock does not necessarily bear any relationship to our book value, assets, past operating results, financial
condition or any other established criteria of value. The facts considered in determining the offering price were our financial condition and prospects, our
limited operating history and the general condition of the securities market.

 
Although our Common Stock is not listed on a public exchange, we will be filing to obtain a quotation on the OTCBB concurrently with the filing of this
prospectus. In order to be quoted on the OTCBB, a market maker must file an application on our behalf in order to make a market for our Common Stock.
There can be no assurance that a market maker will agree to file the necessary documents with FINRA, which operates the OTC Bulletin Board, nor can there
be any assurance that such an application for quotation will be approved.

 
In addition, there is no assurance that our Common Stock will trade at market prices in excess of the initial offering price as prices for the Common Stock in
any public market which may develop will be determined in the marketplace and may be influenced by many factors, including the depth and liquidity.

 
Dilution

 
The Common Stock to be sold by the selling security holders as provided in the “Selling Security Holders” section is Common Stock that is currently issued.
Accordingly, there will be no dilution to our existing shareholders.

 
Selling Security Holders

 
The shares of Common Stock being offered for resale by the selling security holders consist of 4,519,964 shares of our Common Stock held by no more than
35 unaccredited shareholders. Such shareholders, as indicated by an * in the following table, include the holders of 217,364 shares sold in our private
offering pursuant to Regulation D Rule 506 sold through May 6, 2014 at an offering price of $0.75 per share (the “Private Offering”).

  
The following table sets forth the names of the selling security holders, the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by each of the selling
stockholders as of June 3, 2014 and the number of shares of Common Stock being offered by the selling stockholders. The shares being offered hereby are
being registered to permit public secondary trading, and the selling stockholders may offer all or part of the shares for resale from time to time. However, the
selling stockholders are under no obligation to sell all or any portion of such shares nor are the selling stockholders obligated to sell any shares immediately
upon effectiveness of this prospectus. All information with respect to share ownership has been furnished by the selling stockholders.
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Name  

Shares 
Beneficially 

Owned 
Prior 

to Offering   
Shares to 
be Offered   

Amount 
Beneficially 

Owned 
After 

Offering   

Percent 
Beneficially 

Owned 
After 

Offering(1)  
Ross Henry Ramsey (2)   20,000,000   250,000   19,750,000   45.42% 
Benjamin Binh Tran (3)   16,000,000   200,000   15,800,000   36.33% 
Ken August, Esq.   400,000   50,000   350,000   Less than 1% 
Greg Trimarche, Esq.   100,000   50,000   50,000   Less than 1% 
Thong Luong   1,000,000   50,000   950,000   2.18% 
Jeff Jennings   200,000   20,000   180,000   Less than 1% 
Duke H Nguyen*(4)   400,200   200,200   200,000   Less than 1% 
Man Minh Tran   1,000,000   500,000   500,000   1.14% 
Rohit Israni   30,000   30,000   0   0% 
Cang Nghiem   30,000   30,000   0   0% 
Robert Blything   40,000   40,000   0   0% 
Charles Alexander   10,000   10,000   0   0% 
Troy Williams   20,000   20,000   0   0% 
Howard Christy   20,000   20,000   0   0% 
Scot Patterson   40,000   40,000   0   0% 
Ronnie Neu   20,000   20,000   0   0% 
Patrick Sheehan   20,000   20,000   0   0% 
Joey Williams   20,000   20,000   0   0% 
Nicholas Jordan   20,000   20,000   0   0% 
Craig Haught   40,000   40,000   0   0% 
Ted Crenweldge   10,000   10,000   0   0% 
Khoi Phan Lam*(5)   20,267   20,267   0   0% 
Steve Phu*(6)   196,200   196,200   0   0% 
Tony Vu*(7)(8)   166,350   166,350   0   0% 
Daniel Vu   36,000   36,000   0   0% 
Jeff Hung Phu   170,000   170,000   0   0% 
Brandon Mai*(9)(10)   50,200   50,200   0   0% 
Long Mai*(10)(11)   24,200   24,200   0   0% 
Suzanne Kwong   101,000   101,000   0   0% 
Camlinh Nguyen   966,667   966,667   0   0% 
Hoai Thu Nguyen   60,000   60,000   0   0% 
Julie Vuong   240,000   240,000   0   0% 
Hue Nguyen Ngo*(12)   100,300   100,300   0   0% 
Phoebe Chan*(13)   60,200   60,200   0   0% 
Thomas Li Tang Chen*(14)   160,200   160,200   0   0% 
Thomas William Scott   20,000   20,000   0   0% 
Lan Mai Le*(15)   40,267   40,267   0   0% 
Michael Finfrock   80,000   80,000  0 0   0% 
Steve Chu   40,000   40,000   0   0% 
Royal Star USA, LP   100,000   100,000   0   0% 
Aimy Nguyen   33,333   33,333   0   0% 
Tuan Ngo*   10,000   10,000   0   0% 
Richard Doan*   30,000   30,000   0   0% 
Tru Le*   14,000   14,000   0   0% 
Bernadette Nguyen*   100,000   100,000   0   0% 
Giao Thuy Nguyen*   20,000   20,000   0   0% 
Berry Chow*   20,000   20,000   0   0% 
Gurudas Somadder*   13,333   13,333   0   0% 
Tuyet Le*(8)   480   480   0   0% 
Global Compassion Mission*   2,000   2,000   0   0% 
Samara Perpetual Mission*   1,500   1,500   0   0% 
My Duyen Thi Nguyen*(16)   300   300   0   0% 
Alex H Phu*(16)   500   500   0   0% 
Peggy Jie Chen*   1,000   1,000   0   0% 
Kevin Lau*   267   267   0   0% 
David Phu*   200   200   0   0% 
Center of Power Mission*   500   500   0   0% 
Edward Morgan*(17)   250   250   0   0% 
Stephanie Mach*(17)   250   250   0   0% 

TOTAL   
42,299,964

(18)   4,519,964   37,780,000   86.88%
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 *
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)

Indicates Selling Security Holders who bought all or some of their shares in our Private Offering.
Based on 43,484,964 shares outstanding as of June 3, 2014.
Mr. Ramsey is our Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer, and a Director.
Dr. Tran is the Chairman of our Board of Directors.
Duke H Nguyen purchased 200 shares in our Private Offering.
Khoi Phan Lam purchased 267 shares in our Private Offering.
Steve Phu purchased 400 shares in our Private Offering.
Tony Vu purchased 550 in our Private Offering.
Tony Vu and Tuyet Le are married to each other.
Brandon Mai purchased 200 shares in our Private Offering.
Brandon Mai and Long Mai are brothers.
Long Mai purchased 200 shares in our Private Offering.
Hue Nguyen Ngo purchased 300 shares in our Private Offering.
Phoebe Chan purchased 200 shares in our Private Offering.
Thomas Li Tang Chen purchased 200 shares in our Private Offering.
Lan Mai Le purchased 267 shares in our Private Offering.
Alex Phu and My Duyen Thi Nguyen are married to each other.
Edward Morgan and Stephanie Mach are married to each other.
The only shares not detailed in the chart or footnotes above are the 1,185,000 shares owned by Bernice Hong Nguyen. Ms. Nguyen is not
offering any of her shares of Common Stock for resale.
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There are no agreements between the company and any selling security holder pursuant to which the shares subject to this Registration Statement were
issued.

 
Plan of Distribution

 
The selling security holders may sell some or all of their shares at a fixed price of $0.75 per share until our shares are quoted on the OTCBB and thereafter at
prevailing market prices or privately negotiated prices. Prior to being quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board, shareholders may sell their shares in
private transactions to other individuals. Although our Common Stock is not listed on a public exchange, we will be filing to obtain a quotation on the
OTCBB concurrently with the filing of this prospectus. In order to be quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board, a market maker must file an application on our
behalf in order to make a market for our Common Stock. There can be no assurance that a market maker will agree to file the necessary documents with
FINRA, which operates the OTC Bulletin Board, nor can there be any assurance that such an application for quotation will be approved. However, sales by
selling security holder must be made at the fixed price of $0.75 until a market develops for the stock. 

 
Once a market has developed for our Common Stock, the shares may be sold or distributed from time to time by the selling stockholders, who may be deemed
to be underwriters, directly to one or more purchasers or through brokers or dealers who act solely as agents, at market prices prevailing at the time of sale, at
prices related to such prevailing market prices, at negotiated prices or at fixed prices, which may be changed. The distribution of the shares may be effected in
one or more of the following methods:

 
 · ordinary brokers transactions, which may include long or short sales,
 · transactions involving cross or block trades on any securities or market where our Common Stock is trading, market where our Common

Stock is trading,
 · through direct sales to purchasers or sales effected through agents,
 · through transactions in options, swaps or other derivatives (whether exchange listed of otherwise), or exchange listed or otherwise), or
 · any combination of the foregoing.

 
In addition, the selling stockholders may enter into hedging transactions with broker-dealers who may engage in short sales, if short sales were permitted, of
shares in the course of hedging the positions they assume with the selling stockholders. The selling stockholders may also enter into option or other
transactions with broker-dealers that require the delivery by such broker-dealers of the shares, which shares may be resold thereafter pursuant to this
prospectus. None of the selling security holders are broker-dealers or affiliates of broker dealers.

 
We will advise the selling security holders that the anti-manipulation rules of Regulation M under the Exchange Act may apply to sales of shares in the
market and to the activities of the selling security holders and their affiliates. In addition, we will make copies of this prospectus (as it may be supplemented
or amended from time to time) available to the selling security holders for the purpose of satisfying the prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act.
The selling security holders may indemnify any broker-dealer that participates in transactions involving the sale of the shares against certain liabilities,
including liabilities arising under the Securities Act.

 
Brokers, dealers, or agents participating in the distribution of the shares may receive compensation in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions from
the selling stockholders and/or the purchasers of shares for whom such broker-dealers may act as agent or to whom they may sell as principal, or both (which
compensation as to a particular broker-dealer may be in excess of customary commissions). Neither the selling stockholders nor we can presently estimate the
amount of such compensation. We know of no existing arrangements between the selling stockholders and any other stockholder, broker, dealer or agent
relating to the sale or distribution of the shares. We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of the shares of the selling security holders pursuant to this
prospectus. We have agreed to bear the expenses of the registration of the shares, including legal and accounting fees, and such expenses are estimated to be
approximately $20,000.

  
Notwithstanding anything set forth herein, no FINRA member will charge commissions that exceed 8% of the total proceeds of the offering.

 
Description of Securities to be Registered

 
General
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We are authorized to issue an aggregate number of 100,000,000 shares of capital stock, of which 90,000,000 shares are Common Stock, $0.001 par value per
share, and 10,000,000 shares are preferred stock, par value of $0.001 per share.

 
Common Stock

 
We are authorized to issue 90,000,000 shares of Common Stock, $0.001 par value per share. Currently we have 43,484,964 shares of Common Stock issued
and outstanding.

 
Each share of Common Stock shall have one (1) vote per share for all purpose. Our Common Stock does not provide a preemptive, subscription or conversion
rights and there are no redemption or sinking fund provisions or rights. Our Common Stock holders are not entitled to cumulative voting for election of
Board of Directors.

 
Preferred Stock

 
We are authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.001 par value per share. Currently, no shares of our preferred stock have been designated
any rights and we have no shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding.

 
Dividends

 
We have not paid any cash dividends to our shareholders.  The declaration of any future cash dividends is at the discretion of our board of directors and
depends  upon our earnings, if any, our capital requirements and financial position, our general economic conditions, and other pertinent conditions.  It is our
present intention not to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future, but rather to reinvest earnings, if any, in our business operations.

 
Warrants

 
There are no outstanding warrants to purchase our securities.

 
Options

 
There are no outstanding options to purchase our securities.

 
Transfer Agent and Registrar
 
VStock Transfer, LLC, 18 Lafayette Place, Woodmere, NY 11598, Phone: 212-828-8436, Fax: 646-536-3179 
 
Interests of Named Experts and Counsel

 
No expert or counsel named in this prospectus as having prepared or certified any part of this prospectus or having given an opinion upon the validity of the
securities being registered or upon other legal matters in connection with the registration or offering of the Common Stock was employed on a contingency
basis, or had, or is to receive, in connection with the offering, a substantial interest, direct or indirect, in the registrant or any of its parents or subsidiaries. Nor
was any such person connected with the registrant or any of its parents or subsidiaries as a promoter, managing or principal underwriter, voting trustee,
director, officer, or employee.

 
Szaferman, Lakind, Blumstein & Blader, P.C. located at 101 Grovers Mill Road, Suite 200, Lawrenceville, NJ 08648 will pass on the validity of the common
stock being offered pursuant to this registration statement.

 
The financial statements for the period from February 19, 2014 (inception) to February 28, 2014 included in this prospectus and the Registration Statement
have been audited by GBH CPAs, PC, an independent registered public accounting firm, to the extent and for the periods set forth in their report appearing
elsewhere herein and in the Registration Statement, and are included in reliance upon such report given upon the authority of said firm as experts in auditing
and accounting.
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Information about the Registrant
 

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
 

We are an exploration-stage oil and natural gas company that focuses on the acquisition, development, and exploration of crude oil and natural gas
properties in Texas. The company was incorporated in the state of Nevada on February 19, 2014 and is based in Irving, Texas. The Company was established
in recognition of the urgent need for the development of the United States’ oil reserves to help build energy self-sufficiency and economic equilibrium.
 
Our core business strategy is to: (a) acquire petroleum exploration companies with moderate production growth and add capital to instigate explosive
growth; (b) acquire new high-potential hydrocarbon land leases and perform initial explorations on those leases to add value as “proven reserve” properties
and then sell them off at multiples of the cost basis; and (c) acquire existing oil and gas production with large reserves, to increase the Company’s value.
 
Our operation strategy is to identify “prime time” hydrocarbon land leases in the West and Central Texas and develop proven oil fields via drilling new wells
and re-entering existing low production wells in West Texas to maximize production and enhance valuation of our production assets. We also plan to
position the Company in the international marketplace as a petroleum expert in the United States to partner up with multinational oil and gas players after
establishing our presence in the Permian Basin of Texas and applying state-of-the-art exploration technology on our new leases.
 
Based upon Company management’s general management and petroleum exploration experience as well as its geology expertise and its ability to identify
high potential acreages and high production fields, management believes that the Company’s near future valuation as a public company is attractive.
 
Our immediate revenue strategy is to acquire new hydrocarbon land leases and unlock their potential by drilling a number of wells to be hand-picked by the
management and then possibly resell the leases at multi-fold of the initial purchase prices.
 
Rationale
 
Although the market for oil and gas exploration is very crowded, there are profits to be made in any good company. Unlike many major oil companies that
often drill very deep wells with a high degree of risk, we are a specialist in shallow well exploration (3,000- 6,000 feet) that is less expensive and has lower
risk factors. That is our most important exploration practice.
 
Our CEO is a true oil man who is a local West Texan having a special talent in acquiring local “prime time” hydrocarbon land leases that have the high
potential for hydrocarbon reserves currently “under the radar.” As such, these highly valuable leases are not easily accessible by the major oil and gas
companies in the region.
 
The Company has a highly committed international team comprised of a 4th generation oil man, an international business executive, and a petroleum expert
who will team up with local senior geologists having high credentials and in-depth local experience.
 
The Company will fully utilize its strength in its knowledge of the capital markets to initially list itself on the OTC Markets as an exploration stage company.
Via future growth, the Company has a plan to upgrade to a senior US stock exchange in the near future.
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Technologies
 
Management believes that technology is one of the key differentiators of the Company. Oil and natural gas reserve development is a highly technologically
oriented industry; many techniques developed by the industry are now used in other industries, including the space program. Technological innovations
have made it possible for the oil and natural gas industry to furnish the fuels that power the world economy. Technology has greatly increased the success
rate of finding commercial oil or natural gas deposits. For energy developers seeking new deposits of producible oil or natural gas reserves, today’s
technology has increased well success rates from 22% in 1973, to an estimated 79% success rate currently. The georadiometry exploration technology that
the Company is selecting, in general, has a higher success rate than the average success rate today. In general, the Company expects to apply the following
technologies to determine the drilling locations and the drilling depths.
 
Georadiometry
 
The use of 3-D Hydrocarbon Imaging brought georadiometric technology into the cutting edge of identifying and quantifying oil reservoirs and reserves with
sophisticated field equipment and software integration abilities that aided explorers in locating oil and gas leasehold reserves. All specific drilling
recommendations and opinions are based upon the technical results of inferences from global positioning satellites, electrical, and gamma ray devices and
calibrated measurements based on georadiometric technology. 3-D Hydrocarbon Imaging rivals conventional seismic and downhole logging for reserve
identification. This technology goes beyond conventional techniques in both arenas of cost and reserve identification and has been leveraged to meet the
needs of the industry. 3-D Hydrocarbon Imaging has taken historical radiometric technology to a more complete and reliable level today. Historical
documentation of radiometric’s success ratio and interpretation average above 90% in its accuracy. To date, this radiometry technology has demonstrated
that it has clearly improved on this with its thoroughness in gathering field data and applying its sophisticated computer modeling and interpretation.
 
Hydrocarbon Satellite Imaging
 
Hydrocarbon survey maps are generated from several data sources downloaded from scientific instruments installed on Earth orbit satellites. These
instruments are designed to retrieve physical data from outer space as well as from the Earth. Instruments installed on the satellites include, for our use, Radar,
Infrared (Temperature), Radiation (Radiometrics), Dialectic Potential (Tellurics), Ionization, and Geo-Magnetics. These data sets are stacked and embedded
into each data stream that result in the final map interpretation. All of these exploration techniques can be done separately with land based tools but with the
use of satellites it is possible to cover much larger areas more economically.
 
Directional Drilling
 
Drilling technology has come a long way over the years. Among the most recent advancements in drilling are Rotary Steerable tools which allow three
dimensional control of the bit without stopping the drill string. One of the benefits of this technology is increasing the exposed section throughout the target
reservoir by drilling through it at an angle. Directional drilling also allows drilling into reservoirs where vertical access is difficult or not possible; for
instance, an oilfield under a town, lake, or hard to drill through formation.
 
Fracturing Technology
 
Fracturing technology allows the industry to get more oil or natural gas out of each deposit that it finds. Newer stimulation technologies, completion
treatment fluids, and enhanced recovery techniques enable the oil or natural gas to move more easily to producing well bores. Hydraulic fracturing
techniques create small cracks from the well bore into the reservoir rock. A “propant” (usually sand), is then pumped into the formation to keep the fractures
open. These fractures serve as a “highway” for the hydrocarbons to be produced. Horizontal-drilling technologies allow the reservoir to be penetrated
horizontally rather than vertically, opening more of the reservoir to the well bore and enhancing recovery. “Acidizing”, is another stimulation technique that
is frequently used in carbonate (limestone, dolomite) reservoirs to increase porosity, permeability and to enhance recovery. Sometimes the techniques of
fracturing and acidizing are combined in an “acid-frac job” resulting in increased production. Secondary and tertiary recovery techniques can include “water
flood” which utilizes water injection wells to push oil from partially depleted reservoirs to recovery wells. CO2 injection wells pressure up the depleted
reservoir for the same purpose of increasing production.
 

23

Source: INTERNATIONAL WESTERN PETROLEUM, INC., S-1, June 03, 2014 Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠
The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.



 

Reservoir Estimate
 
The Company is aiming to acquire hydrocarbon-rich land leases in the Bend Arch region of Texas. The Bend Arch is a prolific structure that contains a vast
amount of commercial hydrocarbons. This structure has yielded a large amount of commercial revenue from hydrocarbon recovery for over 80 years. A study
of the history of prospecting for oil and gas in the Bend Arch reveals that a treasure trove of oil and gas reserves still exist because early oilmen often failed to
use a methodical approach or a calculated drilling program to fully find and develop many of the fields that exist in the Bend Arch.
 
Historically speaking, in 1917, discovery of the Ranger field stimulated one of the largest exploration and development "booms" in Texas. The Ranger field
produces oil from the Atoka-Bend formation, a sandstone-conglomerate reservoir that directly overlies the Barnett formation. Operators drilled more than
1,000 wildcat wells in and around the Fort Worth basin attempting to duplicate the success of Ranger. These wildcat efforts resulted in the discovery of more
fields and production from numerous other reservoirs including Strawn fluvial/deltaic sandstone, Atoka-Bend fluvial/deltaic sandstone and conglomerate,
Marble Falls carbonate bank limestone, Barnett siliceous shale, and Ellenberger dolomitic limestone.
 
One of the major leases we are looking at lies on the western edge of Coleman County. This is on the western dip of the Bend Arch as it starts to dip westerly
and extend until it merges with the Permian Basin. Prolific oil and gas revenues have been generated on this western flank of the Arch because of the many
folds, anticlines, and strategic traps that are present. Early drilled wells showed both oil and gas in commercial quantities. However, encountering gas before
reaching the oil bearing zone resulted in many wells being abandoned because historical data shows that the price of gas per MCF only reached $1.00/MCF
in 1980.
 
Historical well data for Coleman County, Texas as well as many drilled and producing wells surrounding our development project leases show that
production has come from as many as 5 different pay-zones on a commercial basis. The 5 pay-zones (Fry, Tannehill, Strawn Sands (consisting of Gray,
Gardner, & 2 other consolidated sands), Caddo, and Ellenberger) are dispersed on the western flank of the Arch and are present in our prospective leases.
 
The Bend Arch region has a history of wells producing oil and gas for 40 to 60 years at an attractive commercial rate in primary production mode, secondary
recovery mode, and even tertiary recovery mode with time on our side which means modern technology will become more advanced in the future.
 
Oil & Gas Market Outlook
 
(Summary of Portions of “The Outlook for Energy: A View to 2040 – Highlights”
http://www.exxonmobil.com/MENA-English/PA/Files/English_Energy_Outlook2013_Highlights.pdf)
 
Global energy demand will be about 35% higher in 2040 compared to 2010, as economic output more than doubles and prosperity expands across a world
whose population will grow to nearly 9 billion people. Energy demand growth will slow as economies mature, efficiency gains accelerate and population
growth moderates.
 
In the countries belonging to the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD) – including countries in North America and Europe –
we see energy use remaining essentially flat, even as these countries achieve economic growth and even higher living standards. In contrast, Non OECD
energy demand will grow by 65%. China’s surge in energy demand will extend over the next decade then gradually flatten as its economy matures and
energy efficiency improves. Elsewhere, billions of people will be working to advance their living standards – requiring more energy.
 
Demand for coal will peak and begin a gradual decline, in part because of emerging policies that will seek to curb emissions by imposing a cost on higher-
carbon fuels. Use of renewable energies and nuclear power will grow significantly.
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Natural gas will grow fast enough to overtake coal for the number-two position behind oil. For both oil and natural gas, an increasing share of global supply
will come from unconventional sources such as those produced from shale formations.
 
Global energy-related carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions will grow slowly, then level off around 2030. In the United States and Europe, where a shift from coal
to less carbon-intensive fuels such as natural gas already is under way, emissions will decline through 2040.
 
In one of the most significant development shown over the Outlook for Energy, advancements in drilling technology will cause natural gas to overtake coal
as the No. 2 fuel source by 2040. Oil is projected to remain the No.1 fuel. Oil and gas will supply 60 %of global demand in 2040, up from 55% percent in
2010.
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Due to expanding economies and international trade, transportation-related energy demand will increase by more than 40% from 2010 to 2040. Most of this
demand is driven by commercial sources such as trucks, planes, ships and trains.
 

 
 
Strategy and Implementation Summary
 
Sales Strategy
 
Abilene, Texas is the closest city with oil handling and sales firms. Our sales strategy in relation to spot pricing is to produce less when the sales price is lower
and produce more when the sales price is higher. To maintain the lowest production cost, our inventory should be virtually zero. We have business
relationships with two companies that handle pick-up and sales of our crude stock to refineries. BML and Transport Oil are our tier 1 buyers.
 
As such, crude oil is picked up from the leases as needed during the calendar month. At the end of the month the crude total sales is tallied by lease and the
30-day average of the daily closing of oil is tabulated. On or about the 25th of the following month the proceeds checks are issued to the financial parties of
record.
 
Operational Plans
 
In Q3 2014, the Company plans to drill 6 wells and continue to raise enough capital via equity financing options to meet this operational goal in 2014.
 
Based upon Company management’s general management and petroleum exploration experience as well as its geology expertise and its ability to identify
high potential acreages and high production fields, management believes that the Company’s near future valuation as a public company is attractive.
 
The Company has prospected several lucrative projects for its exploration in the prolific Bend Arch. After choosing a new prospect, additional research and
evaluation was carried out using personal contacts, geologists, seismic, satellite hydrocarbon imaging, and every available resource to glean information and
data in order to choose the prime drilling locations. The information provided by the geologist who interpreted the seismic data on the prospect indicates the
application of a 3-D computer model to interpret 2-D seismic data. According to reliable sources in the geophysical field, in the absence of actual 3-D seismic
data, using 2-D seismic data in a 3-D seismic computer program is a common practice. It gives the geophysicist or geologist an efficient way of looking at and
interpreting large amounts of data. Through the interpretation of the seismic data, several “bright spots” have been identified and are the primary targets of
this prospect. Seismic has traditionally yielded a 58-63% success rate. The additional use of satellite imaging, which yields an 86-88% success rate, and
proximal well data results in the greatest probability of successful well drilling.
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The Company has plans to design a cost effective operation budget for each exploration project and each budget will vary depending on the total depth of
drilling and whether it is a new drilling or a re-entry. For each project, the Company plans on hiring selected operators to work under the close supervision of
a core team of Company geologists, engineers and scientists.
 
The exploration process is a 2-phase process: Drilling and Testing and Completion. The Company plans on hiring drilling specialists and technical
consultants designated to oversee the drilling for each well during the Drilling and Testing phase. For the Well Completion process, the Company will hire
technical data collectors and cementing operators to ensure the best performance upon perforating the wells at different pay zones based on thorough
technical advisory work done by our internal and external geologists before production.
 
At the moment, the Company has several developmental projects:
 
The Bend Arch Henry Project is a small project located at the border of Taylor and Jones County, north west of Abilene, Texas. This shallow drilling program
(approximately 3,000 feet) is designed to drill and produce oil mainly from the “Cook Sand” pay zone and “Hope Lime” pay zone that lie above the “Caddo-
Ellenberger” zone. As per our 3D Seismic map and other technical data, the wells found oil. In general, wells in the vicinity of our Henry project have already
produced an average of 220,000 barrels (“BBLS”) per well. There are multiple wells in this area that have been producing for over 66 years.
 
The Bend Arch North Anderson Project is focused on the “Flippen Lime” pay zone at an approximate depth of 2,450 feet. The prospect acreage is located
west of and adjacent to the Anson North and Anson town site fields, which is located immediately North of the City of Anson, Jones County. The fields
produced from the Flippen Lime and Cook Sand. The Flippen produced a cumulative total of 140,586 barrels and the Cook Sand approximately 134,919
barrels. The Flippen lime potentials varied from 10 Barrels of Oil Per Day (“BOPD”) up to as much as 135 BOPD. In view of our technical data, the North
Anson Prospect offers excellent possibilities for substantial production from the Flippen formation.
 
The Bend Arch Lion Project is a multi-well exploration that the Company is planning by acquiring a 777 acre leasehold in Coleman County. This project
currently has two producing wells with high quality proven reserves in several pay zones highlighted by the “Gray Sand” pay zone and in some instances the
“Ellenberger” pay zone.
 
The Company shall conduct further review historical radiometric technology to a more complete and reliable level to interpret and compile the Bend Arch
Lion Project data. There are the necessary inclusionary and sedimentary formations for hydrocarbon generation and deposits and geology studies have
concluded that there are significant hydrocarbon reserves (approximately 4.9 Million BBLS) present in this lease. Geology studies have also identified
potential drilling areas for Company geologists to further study before deciding on the exact drilling locations.
 
Employees

 
We presently have no employees apart from Ross Henry Ramsey, our Chief Executive Officer, President, and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Ramsey devotes
about 60 hours per week to our affairs.

 
Dr. Syed Ahmad is our consulting Chief Geologist who is devoted to our core projects on a as needed basis. We plan to convert his working status to a full
time employee upon achieving our immediate financial goals. 

 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

 
We expect to sign a lease agreement with regard to our Irving, TX office in the coming weeks. We expect our monthly rent to be $1,970 and for the lease
agreement to expire on December 31, 2015.

 
Our Company is engaged in oil and gas producing activities and is thus subject to the information requirements of Subpart 1200 of Regulation S-K. We do
not yet have, however, reserves, undeveloped reserves, delivery commitments, any wells in the process of being drilled, or drilling or other exploratory and
development activities. We also do not yet own any oil and gas properties or acreage.
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
 

From time to time, we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings, which arise, in the ordinary course of business. However, litigation is
subject to inherent uncertainties, and an adverse result in these or other matters may arise from time to time that may harm our business. We are currently not
aware of any such legal proceedings or claims that we believe will have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or operating results.

 
MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

 
There is presently no public market for our shares of common stock. We anticipate applying for quoting of our common stock on the OTCBB upon the
effectiveness of the Registration Statement of which this prospectus forms apart. However, we can provide no assurance that our shares of common stock will
be quoted on the OTCBB or, if quoted, that a public market will materialize.

 
Holders of Capital Stock

 
As of the date of this Registration Statement, we had 60 holders of our common stock.

 
Rule 144 Shares

 
As of the date of this Registration Statement, we do not have any shares of our common stock that are currently available for sale to the public in accordance
with the volume and trading limitations of Rule 144.

 
Stock Option Grants

 
We do not have a stock option plan in place and have not granted any stock options at this time.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
 
To the Board of Directors
International Western Petroleum, Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
 
We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of International Western Petroleum, Inc. (an Exploration Stage Company) as of February 28, 2014 and the
related statements of operations, changes in stockholders' deficit, and cash flows for the period from February 19, 2014 (inception) through February 28,
2014. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not
required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of International Western Petroleum, Inc.
as of February 28, 2014 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the period from February 19, 2014 (inception) through February 28, 2014
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern.  As discussed in Note 2 to the
financial statements, the Company has incurred losses from operations and has a working capital deficit as of February 28, 2014, which raises substantial
doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern.  Management’s plans concerning these matters are also described in Note 2.  The financial statements
do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
 
/s/ GBH CPAs, PC
 
GBH CPAs, PC
www.gbhcpas.com
Houston, Texas
May 30, 2014
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INTERNATIONAL WESTERN PETROLEUM, INC.

(An Exploration Stage Company)
BALANCE SHEET

 
  February 28, 2014  
    

ASSETS     
Current Assets:     
  Cash  $ - 
     
TOTAL ASSETS  $ - 
     

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT     
     
Current Liabilities:     
    Accrued expenses  $ 2,750 
    Advances from officer   10,320 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES   13,070 
     
Stockholders’ Deficit:     
Preferred stock, $.001 par value per share,     
   10,000,000 shares authorized; -0- shares issued     
     and outstanding at February 28, 2014   - 
Common stock, $.001 par value per share,     
     90,000,000 shares authorized; 43,267,600 shares issued     
     and outstanding at February 28, 2014   43,268 
Additional paid-in capital   - 
Deficit accumulated in the development stage   (56,338)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT   (13,070)
     
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND     
   STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT  $ - 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL WESTERN PETROLEUM, INC.

(An Exploration Stage Company)
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

 FOR THE PERIOD FROM FEBRUARY 19, 2014 (INCEPTION) THROUGH FEBRUARY 28, 2014
 

  February 19, 2014  
  (inception) through  
  February 28, 2014  
    

REVENUES  $ - 
     
OPERATING EXPENSES:     
  Stock-based compensation   43,268 
  Professional fees   12,000 
  Licenses and permits   1,070 
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES   56,338 
     
NET LOSS  $ (56,338)
     
Net loss per common share - basic and diluted  $ (0.00)
     
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding – basic and diluted   36,000,000 

  
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL WESTERN PETROLEUM, INC.
 (An Exploration Stage Company)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
 FOR THE PERIOD FROM FEBRUARY 19, 2014 (INCEPTION) THROUGH FEBRUARY 28, 2014

 
           Deficit     
           Accumulated     
        Additional   in the   Total  
  Common Stock   Paid-In   Development   Stockholders'  
  Shares   Amount   Capital   Stage   Equity (Deficit)  

Balance, February 19, 2014 (Inception)   -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
                     
Common stock issued for founder shares   43,267,600   43,268   -   -   43,268 
                     
Net loss   -   -   -   (56,338)   (56,338)
                     
Balance, February 28, 2014   43,267,600  $ 43,268  $ -  $ (56,338)  $ (13,070)

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL WESTERN PETROLEUM, INC.

(An Exploration Stage Company)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD FROM FEBRUARY 19, 2014 (INCEPTION) THROUGH FEBRUARY 28, 2014
 

  February 19, 2014  
  (inception) through  
  February 28, 2014  
    

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:     
  Net loss  $ (56,338)
  Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:     
  Stock-based compensation   43,268 
    Changes in operating assets and liabilities:     
      Accrued expenses   2,750 
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES   (10,320)
     
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:     
  Proceeds from advances from officer   10,320 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES   10,320 
     
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH   - 
     
CASH - BEGINNING OF PERIOD   - 
     
CASH - END OF PERIOD  $ - 
     
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:     
  Cash paid for income taxes  $ - 
  Cash paid for interest  $ - 
     

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL WESTERN PETROLEUM, INC.

(An Exploration Stage Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
 
Note 1 – Organization, Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
 
International Western Petroleum, Inc. (“IWP” or the “Company”) was incorporated on February 19, 2014 as a Nevada corporation.  The Company is an
exploration stage company with no current business activity and whose purpose is to conduct operations in the oil and gas industry.
 
Use of Estimates
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expense during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
 
Exploration Stage
 
The financial statements presented herein have been prepared by the Company in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”)
and the accounting policies set forth in these financial statements. The Company is in the exploration stage and consequently its financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic No. 915 – Development Stage Entities.
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
 
The carrying amount of the Company’s accrued expenses and advances from officer approximates its estimated fair value due to the short-term nature of that
financial instrument.
 
Income Taxes
 
Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic No. 740. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that
includes the enactment date. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to be realized.
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Stock-Based Compensation
 
The Company measures stock-based compensation cost at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and recognize it as expense, over the vesting or
service period, as applicable, of the stock award.
 
Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share
 
Basic net loss per common share amounts are computed by dividing the net loss available to International Western Petroleum, Inc. shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding over the reporting period. In periods in which the Company reports a net loss, dilutive securities are
excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share as the effect would be anti-dilutive. For the period from February 19, 2014 (Inception) through
February 28, 2014, there were no potentially dilutive securities outstanding.
 
Subsequent Events

 
The Company evaluated material events occurring between the end of our fiscal year, February 28, 2014, and through the date when the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued for disclosure consideration.
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
 
The Company does not expect the adoption of recently issued accounting pronouncements to have a significant impact on its results of operations, financial
position or cash flows.
 
Note 2 – Going Concern
 
As reflected in the accompanying financial statements, the Company has generated a net loss of $56,338 and negative cash flows from operations of $10,320
during the period from February 19, 2014 (inception) through February 28, 2014. Also, the Company currently does not have any business activities to
generate funds for its own operations. These conditions raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. The Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern is dependent on its ability to raise additional capital and implement its business plan.
 
Management believes that actions presently being taken to obtain additional funding and implement its strategic plans provide the opportunity for the
Company to continue as a going concern.
 
Note 3 – Related Party Transactions
 
During the period from February 19, 2014 (Inception) through February 28, 2014, Benjamin Tran, the Company’s majority shareholder and director,
advanced $10,320 to the Company to fund its operations. As of February 28, 2014, the amount due to such majority shareholder and director was
$10,320.  The advances to the Company are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are payable upon demand.
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Note 4 – Stockholders’ Deficit
 
On February 19, 2014, the Company issued 36,000,000 shares of common stock of the Company to its founders. On February 28, 2014, the Company issued
an additional 7,267,600 shares of common stock of the Company to various individuals. The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense at par
value of $43,268 in connection with the issuance of these common shares during the period from February 19, 2014 (Inception) through February 28, 2014.
 
Note 5 – Income Tax Provision
 
Due to the Company’s net loss, there was no provision for income taxes for the period from February 19, 2014 (Inception) through February 28, 2014. The
taxable loss of the Company for the period from February 19, 2014 (Inception) through February 28, 2014 is $13,070. Taxable loss excludes $43,268 of
stock-based compensation. Based on a federal statutory rate of 34%, the Company has a net operating loss carryforward of $4,444 which is offset by a
valuation allowance of the same amount. If not utilized, the loss will begin to expire in 2034.
 
Note 6 – Subsequent Events
 
On May 6, 2014, the Company sold 217,364 shares of common stock for cash proceeds of $163,023.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

 
The following discussion provides information which management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of our results of operations and
financial condition. The discussion should be read along with our financial statements and notes thereto. This section includes a number of forward-looking
statements that reflect our current views with respect to future events and financial performance. Forward-looking statements are often identified by words
like believe, expect, estimate, anticipate, intend, project and similar expressions, or words which, by their nature, refer to future events. You should not place
undue certainty on these forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results to differ materially from our predictions.

 
Overview
 
The Company is an exploration stage company. The Company is currently managed by business and oil and gas exploration veterans who specialize in the
oil and gas acquisition and exploration markets of the Central/West Texas region. The Company’s core competitive advantage today is its ability to tap into
the high potential leases of the Central/West Texas region of the United States, aiming to unlock its potential, specifically in the prolific Bend Arch area.
 
The Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Ross Henry Ramsey, and his family have participated in a number of exploration projects with several major service
oil and gas companies. Management believes that state-of the-art technology is one of the key differentiators of the Company. Oil and natural gas reserve
development is a highly technologically oriented industry. Technology has greatly increased the success rate of finding commercial oil or natural gas
deposits. For energy developers seeking new deposits of producible oil or natural gas reserves, today’s technology has increased well success rates from 22%
in 1973 to an estimated 79% success rate currently. The Georadiometry exploration technology that the Company is selecting, in general, has a higher
success rate than the average success rate today. In general, the Company expects to apply this technology to determine the drilling locations and the drilling
depths.
 
The Company is continually seeking strategic investors to help it develop well projects located within the Bend Arch area. As such, the Company expects to
obtain enough funding to provide a budget for new acquisitions as well as exploration projects to meet its financial objectives in 2014.
 
Plan of Operation
 
We are currently an exploration stage company. We have not made any acquisitions nor formed any material relationship or entered into any agreement with
any other oil and gas companies. Since inception, our operations are limited to forming the Company and raising capital resources. We have not generated
any revenues to date. We do not currently engage in any business activities that provide cash flow.
 
Liquidity, Capital Resources, and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
 
At the date hereof, we have minimal cash at hand. We require additional capital to implement our business and fund our operations.
 
Additional funding may not be available on favorable terms, if at all. The Company intends to continue to fund its business by way of equity or debt
financing and advances from related parties. In the event we seek to raise additional capital through the issuance of debt or its equivalents, this will result in
increased interest expense. If we raise additional capital through the issuance of equity or convertible debt securities, the percentage ownership of our
company held by existing shareholders will be reduced and those shareholders may experience significant dilution. In addition, new securities may contain
certain rights, preferences or privileges that are senior to those of our common stock. We cannot assure you that we will be able to raise the working capital as
needed in the future on terms acceptable to us, if at all.
 
If we are unable to raise capital as needed, we are required to reduce the scope of our business development activities, which could harm our business plans,
financial condition and operating results, or cease our operations entirely, in which case, you will lose all of your investment.
 

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
 

There have been no changes in or disagreements with accountants on accounting or financial disclosure matters.
 

DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS AND CONTROL PERSONS
 

The following table sets forth the names and ages of officers and director as of June 3, 2014. Our executive officers are elected annually by our Board of
Directors. Our executive officers hold their offices until they resign, are removed by the Board, or his successor is elected and qualified. 

 
Name  Age  Position
Dr. Benjamin Tran  47  Chairman, Board of Directors and Secretary
Ross Henry Ramsey  26  Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer, and Director
Dr. Syed Ahmad  74  Chief Geologist
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Set forth below is a brief description of the background and business experience of our executive officer and director for the past five years.
 
Dr. Benjamin Tran is a co-founder of International Western Petroleum, Inc. and has served as the Chairman of our Board of Directors and our Secretary since
our inception. Dr. Tran specializes in cross-border M&A advisory and private equity advisory services. Dr. Tran was the President of an Asia-based Joint
Venture with Brean Murray Carret & Co., a New York-based investment bank that has transacted over 100 IPOs/APOs/SPACs and raised over $4B for U.S. and
Asian companies. Dr. Tran is also a founding member of Asia Pacific Capital Corporation, a global Private Equity advisory firm. Dr. Tran has been a seasoned
international consultant providing corporate development and restructuring to emerging-growth companies in Silicon Valley and the Asia Pacific region. Dr.
Tran also serves as a board director, CFO, corporate strategist, and executive advisor for several emerging growth companies in the US. As a Silicon Valley
high-tech veteran, Dr. Tran brings over 20 years of diversified experience including mergers and acquisitions, merchant banking, private equity, strategic
marketing and international business development. Prior to his private equity and corporate advisory career, Dr. Tran worked for technology leaders
including Micron Technology, Fujitsu Microelectronics, Mitsubishi Electric, Philips Semiconductors, holding various senior technical and marketing
management positions. Dr. Tran holds a PhD in Business Administration from American Premier University, an MBA from the University of Phoenix, and MS
and BS degrees in Electrical Engineering from San Jose State University, California.
 
Dr. Tran’s qualifications to serve on our Board include his many years of experience in business development and providing corporate transactional advice to
emerging growth companies.
 
Ross Henry Ramsey is a co-founder of International Western Petroleum, Inc. and has served as the Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer,
and a Director since our inception. Mr. Ramsey is the 4th generation of a renowned oil and gas explorer family in Texas, the Ramsey family. As a specialist in
cost reduction, advanced drilling and production, Mr. Ramsey has participated in drilling over 100 vertical and horizontal wells, along with deep and
shallow drilling with very successful results. As such, Mr. Ramsey has established himself as a true "Oil Man" at a young age. Mr. Ramsey knows both sides
of the oil business, from being hands on to the financial planning. Mr. Ramsey has been taught the oil business from the ground up and his family takes great
pride passing the knowledge down through the generations.
 
Mr. Ramsey’s qualifications to serve on our Board include his experience in the oil and gas industry.
 
Dr. Syed Ahmad has been our Chief Geologist since our inception. Dr. Ahmad is a petroleum expert with 30 years of diversified experience in the Petroleum
industry including extensive operational experience in areas of well site operations and supervision, Geosteering of wells, use of Periscope in channel sands,
and planning and mobilization of drilling rigs, mud-logging units and crews. Dr. Ahmed is conversant with 3D Seismic data interpretation, data collection
and synthesis of biostratigraphic, sedimentology and geochemical data, geochemical evaluation of wells and prospects, as well as reservoir characterization.
As a skilled geologist in Geomodeling, Dr. Ahmed has a very strong background in data management, in reservoir environment, as well as in technical
presentation of projects. Dr. Ahmed has held several senior technical positions such as Sr. Geologist with Schlumberger, Geological Consultant with Saudi
Geophysical/ Aramco (Saudi Arabia), and Consultant with Mobil Producing, Nigeria. Dr. Ahmed worked as Country Manager for Petrolog de Venezuela
where he was responsible for all operations, as well as technical evaluation, and advisement on project acquisitions and contract negotiation. Earlier in his
career, Dr. Ahmed also served as Data Management Consultant with Exxon Exploration Company (Texas) and Sr. Geologist at Placid Oil Company
(Louisiana). Dr. Ahmed earned a PhD in Geology from Birmingham University, England, an MS in Geology and a BS in Chemistry from Dacca University,
Bangladesh. 
 
Term of Office

 
Our directors are appointed for a one-year term to hold office until the next annual general meeting of our shareholders or until removed from office in
accordance with our bylaws. Our officers are appointed by our board of directors and hold office until removed by the board.

 

31

Source: INTERNATIONAL WESTERN PETROLEUM, INC., S-1, June 03, 2014 Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠
The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.



 

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
 

Our executive employees have not received any compensation for services rendered to us, and are not accruing any compensation pursuant to any agreement
with us.

 
We do not expect to pay any compensation to our employees until sufficient and sustainable financial budgets are obtained.

 
No retirement, pension, profit sharing, insurance programs, long-term incentive plans or other similar programs have been adopted by us for the benefit of our
employees. We had no outstanding equity awards as of the date of this Registration Statement. 

 
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

 
The following table sets forth certain information as of June 3, 2014 with respect to the holdings of: (1) each person known to us to be the beneficial owner of
more than 5% of our Common Stock; (2) each of our directors, nominees for director and named executive officers; and (3) all directors and executive officers
as a group. To the best of our knowledge, each of the persons named in the table below as beneficially owning the shares set forth therein has sole voting
power and sole investment power with respect to such shares, unless otherwise indicated.  Unless otherwise specified, the address of each of the persons set
forth below is in care of the Company, at the address of: International Western Petroleum, Inc., 5525 N. MacArthur Boulevard, Suite 280, Irving, TX 75038.
 

Name of Beneficial Owner  

Amount and
Nature of
Beneficial
Ownership   

Percent of 
Common Stock

(1)  
5% Stockholders: None         
         
Directors and Executive Officers:         
Dr. Benjamin Tran, Chairman, Board of Directors and Secretary   16,000,000   36.8%
Ross Henry Ramsey, Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer and Director   20,000,000   46%
All directors and executive officers as a group (2 persons)   36,000,000   82.79%

 
(1) Based on 43,484,964 shares of common stock outstanding as of June 3, 2014.
 

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS, PROMOTERS AND CERTAIN CONTROL PERSONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
 

Transactions with Related Persons
 

We issued 20,000,000 shares of Common Stock to Ross Henry Ramsey, our Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer, and Director, at par
value $0.001 per share.

 
We issued 16,000,000 shares of Common Stock to Dr. Benjamin Tran, our Chairman and Secretary, at par value $0.001 per share.

 
Director Independence and Committees

 
Mr. Ross Henry Ramsey is not considered independent because he is an executive officer of the Company. We do not currently have a separately designated
audit, nominating or compensation committee. 
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DISCLOSURE OF COMMISSION POSITION ON INDEMNIFICATION OF SECURITIES ACT LIABILITIES
 

Our directors and officers are indemnified as provided by the Nevada corporate law and our Bylaws. We have agreed to indemnify each of our directors and
certain officers against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933. Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the
Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to our directors, officers and controlling persons pursuant to the provisions described above, or otherwise, we have
been informed that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities
Act of 1933 and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than our payment of expenses
incurred or paid by our director, officer or controlling person in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or
controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, we will, unless in the opinion of our counsel the matter has been settled by controlling
precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities
Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
 

 
INTERNATIONAL WESTERN PETROLEUM, INC.

 
4,519,964 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK

 
PROSPECTUS

 
YOU SHOULD RELY ONLY ON THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT OR THAT WE HAVE REFERRED YOU TO. WE HAVE NOT
AUTHORIZED ANYONE TO PROVIDE YOU WITH INFORMATION THAT IS DIFFERENT. THIS PROSPECTUS IS NOT AN OFFER TO SELL COMMON
STOCK AND IS NOT SOLICITING AN OFFER TO BUY COMMON STOCK IN ANY STATE WHERE THE OFFER OR SALE IS NOT PERMITTED.

 
Until _____________, all dealers that effect transactions in these securities whether or not participating in this offering may be required to deliver a
prospectus. This is in addition to the dealer’s obligation to deliver a prospectus when acting as underwriters and with respect to their unsold allotments or
subscriptions.
 

The Date of This Prospectus is June 3, 2014
 

PART II   INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN THE PROSPECTUS
 

OTHER EXPENSES OF ISSUANCE AND DISTRIBUTION
 

Securities and Exchange Commission registration fee  $ 436.63 
Federal Taxes  $ 0 
State Taxes and Fees  $ 0 
Transfer Agent Fees  $ 298.00 
Accounting fees and expenses  $ 4,500.00 
Legal fees and expense  $ 15,000.00 
Blue Sky fees and expenses  $ 0 
Miscellaneous  $ 0 
Total  $ 20,234.63 
 
All amounts are estimates other than the Commission’s registration fee. We are paying all expenses of the offering listed above. No portion of these expenses
will be borne by the selling security holders. The selling security holders, however, will pay any other expenses incurred in selling their common stock,
including any brokerage commissions or costs of sale.
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INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
 

To the fullest extent permitted by the laws of the State of Nevada, our Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, we may indemnify an officer or director who is
made a party to any proceeding, including a lawsuit, because of his/her position, if he/she acted in good faith and in a manner he/she reasonably believed to
be in our best interest. We may advance expenses incurred in defending a proceeding. To the extent that the officer or director is successful on the merits in a
proceeding as to which he/she is to be indemnified, we must indemnify him/her against all expenses incurred, including attorney’s fees. With respect to a
derivative action, indemnity may be made only for expenses actually and reasonably incurred in defending the proceeding, and if the officer or director is
judged liable, only by a court order.

 
Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers or persons controlling us pursuant to the
foregoing provisions, we have been informed that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy
as expressed in the Securities Act and is theretofore unenforceable. 

 
RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

 
We were incorporated in the State of Nevada on February 19, 2014. In connection with incorporation, we issued 36,000,000 shares of common stock to our
founders for services with a fair value of $36,000. On February 28, 2014, we issued an additional 7,267,600 shares of common stock to various individuals for
services with a fair value of $7,268.  These shares were issued in reliance on the exemption under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“Act”) and were issued as founders shares. These shares of our common stock qualified for exemption under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 since
the issuance shares by us did not involve a public offering. The offering was not a “public offering” as defined in Section 4(2) due to the insubstantial
number of persons involved in the deal, size of the offering, manner of the offering and number of shares offered. We did not undertake an offering in which
we sold a high number of shares to a high number of investors. In addition, the investors had the necessary investment intent as required by Section 4(2)
since they agreed to and received share certificates bearing a legend stating that such shares are restricted pursuant to Rule 144 of the 1933 Securities Act.
This restriction ensures that these shares would not be immediately redistributed into the market and therefore not be part of a “public offering.” Based on
an analysis of the above factors, we have met the requirements to qualify for exemption under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 for this transaction.

  
On May 6, 2014, we sold through a Regulation D Rule 506 offering a total of 217,364 shares of common stock to no more than 35 unaccredited investors, at
a price per share of $0.75 for an aggregate offering price of $163,023. The Common Stock issued in this offering was issued in a transaction not involving a
public offering in reliance upon an exemption from registration provided by Rule 506 of Regulation D of the Securities Act of 1933. In accordance with
Section 230.506 (b)(1) of the Securities Act of 1933, these shares qualified for exemption under the Rule 506 exemption for this offerings since it met the
following requirements set forth in Reg. §230.506:

 
 (A) No general solicitation or advertising was conducted by us in connection with the offering of any of the Shares.
   
 (B) At the time of the offering we were not: (1) subject to the reporting requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Exchange Act; or (2) an “investment

company” within the meaning of the federal securities laws.
   
 (C) Neither we, nor any of our predecessors, nor any of our directors, nor any beneficial owner of 10% or more of any class of our equity securities,

nor any promoter currently connected with us in any capacity has been convicted within the past ten years of any felony in connection with the
purchase or sale of any security.

   
 (D) The offers and sales of securities by us pursuant to the offerings were not attempts to evade any registration or resale requirements of the securities

laws of the United States or any of its states.
   
 (E) None of the investors are affiliated with any of our directors, officers or promoters or any beneficial owner of 10% or more of our securities.

 
Please note that pursuant to Rule 506, all shares purchased in the Regulation D Rule 506 offering completed in May 2014 were restricted in accordance
with Rule 144 of the Securities Act of 1933. In addition, each of these shareholders were either accredited as defined in Rule 501 (a) of Regulation D
promulgated under the Securities Act or sophisticated as defined in Rule 506(b)(2)(ii) of Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act.

 
We have never utilized an underwriter for an offering of our securities. Other than the securities mentioned above, we have not issued or sold any securities.
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EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
 

EXHIBIT
NUMBER

  
DESCRIPTION

3.1  Articles of Incorporation*
3.2  By-Laws*
5.1  Opinion of Szaferman, Lakind, Blumstein & Blader, P.C.**
23.1  Consent of GBH CPAs, PC*
23.2  Consent of Counsel (included in Exhibit 5.1, hereto)**

 
* Filed Herewith
 
** To Be Filed By Amendment
 

 
UNDERTAKINGS

 
(A) The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes:

 
(1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:

 
i.    To include any prospectus required by section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;

 
ii.   To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective

amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that
which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed
with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than 20% change in the maximum
aggregate offering price set forth in the "Calculation of Registration Fee" table in the effective registration statement.

 
iii.  To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any material

change to such information in the registration statement;
 

(2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new
registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide
offering thereof.

 
(3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the
offering. 

 
(4) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the
registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission
such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against
such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the
successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being
registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate
jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of
such issue. 

 
(5) Each prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) as part of a registration statement relating to an offering, other than registration statements relying on Rule
430B or other than prospectuses filed in reliance on Rule 430A, shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the date it is
first used after effectiveness. Provided, however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or
made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement
will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such first use, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or
prospectus that was part of the registration statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such date of first use.
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SIGNATURES

 
Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant has duly caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in the City of Irving, State of Texas, on June 3, 2014.
 
 INTERNATIONAL WESTERN PETROLEUM, INC.
  
  
 By: /s/Ross Henry Ramsey
  Ross Henry Ramsey
  Chief Executive Officer, President, and

Chief Financial Officer
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the
dates indicated.

 
 
Signature  Title  Date
     
/s/ Ross Henry Ramsey    June 3, 2014
Ross Henry Ramsey  Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial

Officer, and Director 
(Principal Executive Officer, Principal Financial
Officer, and Principal Accounting Officer)

  

     
/s/ Benjamin Tran  Chairman, Board of Directors  June 3, 2014
Benjamin Tran     
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Exhibit 3.2
 

International Western Petroleum, Inc.
 

By-Laws
 
ARTICLE I     MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS
 

1.          Stockholders meetings shall be held in the office of the Corporation, at Carson City, NV, or at such other place or places as the directors shall
from time to time determine.
 

2.          The annual meeting of the Stockholders of this Corporation shall be held at 11 A.M. on the 19th. day of February of each year beginning in
2015, at which time there shall be elected by the Stockholders of the Corporation a Board of Directors for the ensuing year, and the Stockholders shall
transact such other business as shall properly come before them.
 

3.          A notice setting out the time and place of such annual meeting shall be mailed postage prepaid to each of the Stockholders of record, at his
address and as the same appears on the stock book of the company, or if no such address appears, at his last known place of business, at least ten (10) days
prior to the annual meeting.
 

4.          If a quorum is not present. at the annual meeting, the Stockholders present, in person or by proxy, may adjourn to such future time as shall be
agreed upon by them, and notice of such adjournment shall be mailed, postage prepaid, to each Stockholder of record at least ten (10) days before such date
to which the meeting was adjourned; but if a quorum is present, they may adjourn from day to day as they see fit, and no notice of such adjournment need be
given.
 

5.          Special meetings of the Stockholders may be called at any time by the President; by all of the Directors provided there are no more than
three, or if more than three, by any three Directors; or by the holder of a majority share of the capital stock of the Corporation. The Secretary shall send a
notice of such called meeting to each Stockholder of record at least ten (10) days before such meeting, and such notice shall state the time and place of the
meeting, and the object thereof. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice to the Stockholders, unless by unanimous
consent of all the Stockholders present, either in person or by proxy, all such stock being represented at the meeting.
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6.          A majority of the stock issued and outstanding, either in person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any

meeting of the Stockholders.
 

7.          Each Stockholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share of stock in his own name on the books of the company, whether represented in
person or by proxy.
 

8.          All proxies shall be in writing and signed.
 

9.          The following order of business shall be observed at all meetings of the Stockholders so far as is practicable:
 

a. Call the roll;
b. Reading, correcting, and approving of the minutes of the previous meeting;
c. Reports of Officers;
d. Reports of Committees;
e. Election of Directors;
f. Unfinished business; and
g. New business.

 
ARTICLE II     STOCK
 

1.          Certificates of stock shall be in a form adopted by the Board of Directors and shall be signed by the President and Secretary of the
Corporation.
 

2.          All certificates shall be consecutively numbered; the name of the person owning the shares represented thereby, with the number of shares
and the date of issue shall be entered on the company's books.
 

3.          All certificates of stock transferred by endorsement thereon shall be surrendered by cancellation and new certificates issued to the purchaser
or assignee.
 

 

Source: INTERNATIONAL WESTERN PETROLEUM, INC., S-1, June 03, 2014 Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠
The information contained herein may not be copied, adapted or distributed and is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. The user assumes all risks for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information,
except to the extent such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law. Past financial performance is no guarantee of future results.



 

 
ARTICLE Ill     DIRECTORS
 

1.          A Board of Directors, consisting of at least one (1) person shall be chosen annually by the Stockholders at their meeting to manage the affairs
of the company. The Directors' term of office shall be one year, and Directors may be re-elected for successive annual terms.
 

2.          Vacancies on the Board of Directors by reason of death, resignation or other causes shall be filled by the remaining Director or Directors
choosing a Director or Directors to fill the unexpired term.
 

3.          Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at 1 P.M., on the 19th. day of February of each year beginning in 2015 at the office
of the company at Carson City, NV, or such other time or place as the Board of Directors shall by resolution appoint; special meetings may be called by the
President or any Director giving ten (10) days notice to each Director.
 
Special meetings may also be called by execution of the appropriate waiver of notice and call when executed by a majority of the Directors of the company.
A majority of the Directors shall constitute a quorum.
 

4.          The Directors have the general management and control of the business and affairs of the company and shall exercise all the powers that may
be exercised or performed by the Corporation, under the statutes, the Articles of Incorporation, and the By-Laws. Such management will be by equal vote of
each member of the Board of Directors with each board member having an equal vote.
 

5.          A resolution, in writing, signed by all or a majority of the members of the Board of Directors, shall constitute action by the Board of Directors
to effect therein expressed, with the same force and effect as though such resolution has been passed at a duly convened meeting; and it shall be the duty of
the Secretary to record every such resolution in the Minute Book of the Corporation under its proper date.
 
ARTICLE IV     OFFICERS
 

1.          The officers of this company shall consist of: a President, one or more Vice President(s), Secretary, Treasurer, Registered Agent, and such
other officers as shall, from time to time, be elected or appointed by the Board of Directors.
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2.          The PRESIDENT shall preside at all meetings of the Directors and the Stockholders and shall have general charge and control over the affairs

of the Corporation subject to the Board of Directors. He shall sign or countersign all certificates, contracts and other instruments of the Corporation as
authorized by the Board of Directors and shall perform all such other duties as are incident to his office or are required by him by the Board of Directors.
 

3.          The VICE PRESIDENT shall exercise the functions of the President during the absence or disability of the President and shall have such
powers and such duties as may be assigned to him from time to time by the Board of Directors.
 

4.          The SECRETARY shall issue notices for all meetings as required by the By-Laws, shall keep a record of the minutes of the proceedings of the
meetings of the Stockholders and Directors, shall have charge of the corporate books, and shall make such reports and perform such other duties as are
incident to his office, or properly required of him by the Board of Directors. He shall be responsible that the corporation complies with Section 78.105 of the
Nevada Corporation laws and supplies to the Nevada Registered Agent or Registered Office in Nevada, and maintain, any and all amendments or changes to
the By-Laws of the Corporation. In compliance with Section 78.105, he will also supply to the Nevada Registered Agent or registered Office in Nevada, and
maintain, a current statement setting out the name of the custodian of the stock ledger or duplicate stock ledger, and the present and complete Post Office
address, including street and number, if any, where such stock ledger or duplicate stock ledger specified in the section is kept.
 

5.          The TREASURER shall have the custody of all monies and securities of the Corporation and shall keep regular books of account. He shall
disburse the funds of the Corporation in payment of the just demands against the Corporation, or as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, making proper
vouchers for such disbursements and shall render to the Board of Directors, from time to time, as may be required of him, an account of all his transactions as
Treasurer and of the financial condition of the Corporation. He shall perform all duties incident to his office or which are properly required of him by the
Board of Directors.
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6.          The REGISTERED AGENT shall be in charge of the Corporation's registered office in the State of Nevada, upon whom process against the

Corporation may be served and shall perform all duties required of him by statute.
 

7.          The salaries of all offices shall be fixed by the Board of Directors and may be changed from time to time by a majority vote of the board.
 

8.          Each such officer shall serve for a term of one (1) year or until their successors are chosen and qualified. Officers may be re-elected or
appointed for successive annual terms.
 

9.          The Board of Directors may appoint such other officers and agents, as it shall deem necessary or expedient, who shall hold their offices for
such terms and shall exercise such powers and perform such duties as shall be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors.
 
ARTICLE V INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS
 

1.          The Corporation shall indemnify any and all of its Directors and Officers, and its former Directors and Officers, or any person who may have
served at the Corporations request as a Director or Officer of another Corporation in which it owns shares of capital stock or of which it is a creditor, against
expenses actually and necessarily incurred by them in connection with the defense of any action, suit or proceeding in which they, or any of them, are made
parties, or a party, by reason of being or having been Director(s) or Officer(s) of the Corporation, or of such other Corporation, except, in relation to matters as
to which any such director or officer or former Director or Officer or person shall be adjudged in such action, suit or proceeding to be liable for negligence or
misconduct in the performance of duty. Such indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those indemnified may be entitled,
under By-Law, agreement, vote of Stockholders or otherwise.
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ARTICLE VI     AMENDMENTS
 

1.          Any of these By-Laws may be amended by a majority vote of the Stockholders at any meeting or at any special meeting called for that
purpose.
 

2.          The Board of Directors may amend the By-Laws or adopt additional By-Laws, but shall not alter or repeal any By-Law adopted by the
Stockholders of the company.
*************************************************************
 
 CERTIFIED TO BE THE BY-LAWS OF:
 International Western Petroleum, Inc.
  
 

BY:
  Secretary
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
 

To the Board of Directors
International Western Petroleum, Inc.
Irving, TX
 
We hereby consent to the inclusion in this Registration Statement on Form S-1 of our report dated May 30, 2014 relating to the financial statements as of
February 28, 2014 and for the period from February 19, 2014 (inception) to February 28, 2014. We also consent to the reference to our firm under the heading
"Experts" appearing therein.
 
 
/s/ GBH CPAs, PC
 
 
GBH CPAs, PC
www.gbhcpas.com
Houston, Texas
 
June 3, 2014
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